

 


        COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 


             CH I LDR EN ’ S  S E RV I C ES  


          345 5th Street, Colusa, CA 95932 


         (530) 458-0350 • Fax: (530) 458-0310 


R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\PC Packets - Electronic Version\March\March 2023.docx 


------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 


Colusa County Office of Education - Children’s Services 


Early Head Start, Head Start, and State Funded Programs  


Regular Policy Council Meeting  


 


Date:   Wednesday, March 22, 2023 
 


Time:   9:00 a.m. 
 


Location: Education Village - 499 Margurite Street, Williams, CA  95932 - In Room E-2 (Enter at 


the front main office door) 
 


------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 


Agenda 
1.0   Call Meeting to Order – TIME: _____________ 


1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 


 


2.0  Roll Call 


 


3.0       Approve the Minutes of February 22, 2023 Policy Council Meetings                   Action  


                  


action ______      motion _______     second _______     yes _______     no _____    


 


4.0  Public Comments & Presentations                Informational 


  


5.0  Program Planning/Budget                  Informational 


  5.1   Budget, Meal Count, Credit Card/Charge Expense Report, In-Kind Report   


   


6.0  Reports                      Informational  


6.1  Secretary’s Report 


6.2  Classroom Reports by Policy Council Representatives 


6.3  Content Area Training          


6.3.1 Social-Emotional - Licia Dering, Special Needs Coordinator,  


  Children’s Services 


6.4  Community Member Reports 


6.4.1 Colusa County One-Stop, Marisa Apaseo, Employment Service Coordinator   


6.4.2 Colusa County Superintendent of Schools, Mike West 


6.5  Director’s Report  


6.5.1 Enrollment, Attendance, Attendance of Children Partially Funded by Other 


Programs, Curriculum Updates, Program Information Summaries,  


 Vicki Markss - Executive Director, Children’s Services 


  6.6  Family Engagement Coordinator Report – Family Engagement Coordinator, Lydia   


    Navarro  







7.0  New Business                   Action 


  7.1  Approve the 2023-24 Application for Federal Assistance (SF-424) 


 


action _____     motion ______    second ______    yes _____     no _____ 


 


7.2  Approve Recruitment Plan and Eligibility Priorities  


  


action _____     motion ______    second ______    yes _____     no _____ 


 


  7.3  Approve the (Annual Self) Assessment Process  


 


action ______ motion _______ second _______ yes _______ no _____ 


 


7.4   Approve the 2019-2024 Community Assessment Report 


 


action ______ motion _______ second _______ yes _______ no _____ 


 


7.5   Approve the Updated 2019-2024 Program Goals 


 


action ______ motion _______ second _______ yes _______ no _____ 


 


7.6  Approve the 2022-2023 Annual Head Start Report  


 


action ______ motion _______ second _______ yes _______ no _____ 


 


8.0     Correspondence                  Informational  


8.1  ACF-PI-HS-23-02 FY 2023 - Head Start Funding Increase 


 


9.0 Seat Newly Elected Policy Council Representatives, Alternates, Community           


 Representatives/Past Parents 


                       Action 


 action ______      motion _______     second _______     yes _______     no _______ 


 


10.0 Policy Council Executive Officer Elections            Action 


 10.1  Secretary 


 


 action _______   motion _______ second _______ ayes _______   noes _______ 


 


11.0 Announcements    


    11.1  Colusa County Office of Education- Children’s Services, Family Fair - April 15th   


    10:00am to 2:00pm  


         


12.0 Advanced Planning                


12.1  Next Scheduled Meeting Date:  April 26, 2023 at 9:00am  


  (4th Wednesday of the Month) Education Village – Room E-2 


       


13.0 Adjournment – TIME: _____________ 







 


        COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 


             CH I LDR EN ’ S  S E RV I C ES  


          345 5th Street, Colusa, CA 95932 


         (530) 458-0350 • Fax: (530) 458-0310 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 


 


Oficina de Educación del Condado de Colusa – Servicios de Niños 


Early Head Start/Head Start, Programas del Estado 


Junta Regular del Concilio de Pólizas  


 


Fecha:    miércoles, 22 de marzo del 2023 


 


Horario:    9:00 a.m. 


 


Lugar:  Education Village, - 499 Margurite Street en Williams - Salón E-2 (Entera por la 


 puerta principal en la oficina) 
 


------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 


Agenda 
1.0  Dar comienzo a la junta-Hora: _____________ 


  1.1 Juramento de Lealtad 


 


2.0  Tomar lista de los presentes 


 


3.0  Aprobar las minutas de la junta del Concilio de Pólizas de 22 de febrero del 2023  


                        Acción                                 


  acción ______      moción _______     segundo _______     si _______     no _______ 


 


4.0 Comentarios del Público y Presentaciones                 Información 


  


5.0  Planificación/Presupuesto del Programa                Información 


5.1 Reporte del Presupuesto, Total de Comidas, Gastos de Tarjeta  


de Crédito y de carga, Donaciones (In-Kind) 


 


6.0  Reportes                         Información  


6.1  Reporte de la Secretaria  


6.2  Reporte de los Salones por los Representantes del Concilio 


6.3  Entrenamiento de Área de Formación de Contenidos 


  6.3.1 Social-Emocional - Licia Dering, Coordinadora de Necesidades Especiales,  


    Servicios de Niños       


6.4   Reportes de Miembros de la Comunidad  


   6.4.1 Colusa County One-Stop - Marisa Apaseo, Coordinadora de Servicios    


      de Empleo  


6.4.2 Superintendente del Condado de Colusa, Mike West  


 


 


 


Item # 3.0i







R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Agendas\March 2023 Spanish.docx 


6.5  Reporte del Director 


  6.5.1  Inscripción, Asistencia de niños, Asistencia de los niños parcialmente    


      financiados por otros programas, Plan de Estudios, Información del Resumen  


      de los Programas, Vicki Markss, Directora Ejecutiva, Servicios de Niños 


6.6 Reporte de Compromiso Familiar – Coordinadora de Compromiso Familiar,  


 Lydia Navarro, Servicios de Niños 


 


7.0  Nuevo Negocios                      Acción 


  7.1   Aprobar la Solicitud de Asistencia Federal 2023-24 (SF-424) 


 


    acción ______    moción _______   segundo _______    si _______    no ______ 


  


  7.2  Aprobar el plan de reclutamiento y las prioridades de elegibilidad  


  


    acción ______    moción _______   segundo _______    si _______    no ______ 


 


  7.3  Aprobar el proceso de evaluación (auto revisión)  


 


acción ______    moción _______   segundo _______    si _______    no ______ 


 


7.4   Aprobar el Informe de Evaluación de la Comunidad del 2019-2024 


 


acción ______    moción _______   segundo _______    si _______    no ______ 


 


7.5   Aprobar las metas actualizadas del programa del 2019-2024 


 


acción ______    moción _______   segundo _______    si _______    no ______ 


 


7.6  Aprobar el Informe anual de Head Start del 2022-2023   


 


    acción ______    moción _______   segundo _______    si _______    no ______ 


 


8.0  Correspondencia                                         Información 


8.1 ACF-PI-HS-23-02 Año fiscal 2023 - Aumento de fondos de Programa de Head Start 


   


9.0  Dar Asiento a los Nuevos Elegidos al Concilio de Pólizas Representantes, Alternativos o   


  Miembros de la Comunidad 


                        Acción 


  acción ______      moción _______     segundo _______     si _______     no _______ 


 


10.0 Elecciones de Oficiales Ejecutivos del Concilio de Pólizas        Acción 


  11.1  Secretario/a 


 


  acción ______      moción _______     segundo _______     si _______     no _______ 


 


11.0  Anuncios                          Información 


   11.1  Oficina de Educación del Condado de Colusa- Servicios para Niños,  







R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Agendas\March 2023 Spanish.docx 


    Feria Familiar - 15 de abril 10a.m. a 2:00 p.m.  


  


12.0 Planificación Avanzada  


12.1 Próxima fecha programada para la reunión: 26 de abril del 2023 a las 9:00am., 


 (cuarto miércoles del mes) Education Village, Salón E-2 


  


13.0 Terminar la Junta – HORA: _________ 







 


R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Minutes\February 2023.docx                                     1 
 


Colusa County Office of Education 
Children’s Services 


Early Head Start/Head Start & State Programs 
Policy Council Meeting Minutes 


February 22, 2023  
 


Policy Council Members Present: Nicol Stephenson, Astrid Fernandez, Klarissa Espindola, 
Patricia Salazar & Marisa Apaseo 


 
Newly Elected Policy Council    
Member Present:           
           
Other Members Present:     Michael P. West, Superintendent of School, Colusa County  
          Office of Education - Board of One 
           
Staff Members Present:    Vicki Markss, Executive Director, Children’s Services 
          Rosa Talamantes, Fiscal Specialist 
          Joseph Moye, Division Manager - Family Services 
          Lydia Navarro, Family Engagement Coordinator 
                          
1.0  Call Meeting to Order  
 


Chairperson, Klarissa Espindola, called the meeting to order at 9:03A.M.  
 


2.0  Roll Call 
 


Chairperson, Klarissa Espindola took roll call. 
 


3.0  Approve the Minutes of November 16, 2022 Policy Council Meeting 
    
  Result:  Approved 
  Motion:  Patricia Salazar 
  Second: Astrid Fernandez 
  Ayes:  Nicol Stephenson, Astrid Fernandez, Patricia Salazar & Marisa Apaseo 
    
4.0  Public Comments & Presentations   -      None 


  
5.0  Program Planning/Budget                  
  5.1  Budget, Meal Count, Credit Card/Charge Expense Report, In-Kind Report  
  


Nicol Stephenson PC Treasurer, reported on the budget, meal count, credit 
card/charge expense report as presented. Reports are included in your packets. 
 
Comment:  Rosa Talamantes, Fiscal Specialist shared In-kind has improved.   


   
  5.2  CCOE FY 21-22 Financial Audit  
    For more information: website: 07 Jan 11 23 Board Packet.pdf (sharpschool.com)  


  No findings were reported.    


Item # 3.0



https://cdn5-ss9.sharpschool.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_675748/File/07%20Jan%2011%2023%20Board%20Packet.pdf

jrivera

Underline



jrivera

Underline







 


R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Minutes\February 2023.docx                                     2 
 


6.0  Reports                        
6.1  Secretary’s Report    - None 
 
6.2  Classroom Reports by Policy Council Representatives 
 
  Astrid Fernandez, WPLC A Representative shared about her child’s classroom. They  


   are learning about insects and the life cycles, they will be starting a garden on   
   Friday.  


 
  PC Rep had question about how long will infant/toddler children be in the combined  


   with the at WCC site.  Child has started toilet training and there is no toilet    
   in the infant classroom. Child is not developmentally able to wait and then walk to  
   the other classroom to use the toilet without having an accident.  


 
  Response from Executive Director Vicki Markss.  At this time the infant and   


   toddlers’ classrooms are combining for a short period of time in the morning and in  
   the afternoons due to shortage of staff. Director will talk to Education Division   
   Manager to see if possibly having a portable potty chair in the infant room.   


 
  PC Rep asked how the CCOE Hiring Event went.  Executive Director said the event  


   went well.  Interviews were conducted.  Next step in the process is collecting the  
   required documentation such as transcripts and then completing the reference and  
   background checks.     


   
  6.3  Content Area Training 
    6.3.1 Enrollment & Eligibility - Joseph Moye, Family Services, Division Manager,  
      Children’s Service  
       
      Joseph Moye, Family Services, Division Manager shared a PowerPoint   
      presentation on enrollment and eligibility with Policy Council Representatives  
      as presented. 
       


6.4  Community Member Reports 
  6.4.1 Colusa County One-Stop – Marisa Apaseo  
 
    Marisa Apaseo, shared information about free tax help through the    
    VITA (Volunteer Income Tax Assistance) Program.  Contact their IRS-  
    Certified preparers to make an appointment.  Contact: (530)458-0326.   


 
6.4.2 Colusa County Superintendent of Schools, Michael P. West  


(Board of One) 
   
Superintendent Mike West shared the following updates: 
 
Colusa County Adult School has the highest number of graduates graduating.  
If anyone is interested contact: (530)473-1350 ext.10304 or visit 
www.colusacountyadultschool.com 
 



http://www.colusacountyadultschool.com/





 


R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Minutes\February 2023.docx                                     3 
 


Invites parents to visit the Master Gardner Plots and the Community School 
Garden.  In a few weeks the seedlings will be available for purchase.   
 
Migrant Camp - if you see individuals that could benefit from our programs 
refer them to office or let one of our staff know.   
 
Question, from PC Rep.  “Is COVID vaccine a requirement to get in order to 
have employment at CCOE?  Answer, from Superintendent Mike West, 
COVID vaccine is not a requirement.    


 
6.5  Director’s Report  


6.5.1 Enrollment, Attendance, Attendance of Children Partially Funded by 
Other Programs, Curriculum Updates, Program Information Summaries 


 
Vicki Markss, Executive Director Children’s Services reported on enrollment, 
attendance of children partially funded by other programs and program 
information summaries as presented.  
 
A consultant is working w/ preschool staff in more professional development 
in CLASS (Classroom Assessment Scoring System). CLASS is used to 
measure classroom social interactions between staff and children.   
 
Currently reviewing job descriptions.  State requires 12 ECE units.  Staff 
are put on an education plan.  Looking at possible internships.  Also reviewing 
eligibility/selection criteria.   
 
Questions regarding any of CCOE positions can contact Brenda Ramirez at 
(530)458-0350.    
 
Information on current job openings can be found on the EDJoin website:  
https://www.edjoin.org/ccoe 
 
Thank you to CCOE Board Member - Serena Morrow for attending the Policy 
Council Meeting.   


 
  
6.6  Family Engagement Coordinator Report - Lydia Navarro, Family     


   Engagement Coordinator 
     


Family Activity Nights - Focus was literacy.  Footsteps2Brillance distributed 
activity kits and books to all the families in attendance.  
    
Colusa sites held their activity night on February 15th.  The event was well 
attended.  Williams Family Activity will be February 23rd and Arbuckle Sites will 
February 28th.  Flyers have been distributed and also shared on Learning Genie.   
 
Please remind other parents that have not signed up to Learning Genie to sign up!  
Information and messages can be shared with your child’s teacher.  Your 



https://www.edjoin.org/ccoe





 


R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Minutes\February 2023.docx                                     4 
 


teacher can also share resources and video books etc.  Parent can also share 
their child’s observations with teacher.   
 
SAVE THE DATES: 
 


• Wave of Wellness Parent’s Choice Conference - March 17th 2023 
from 8:30-2:00pm.  We will provide transportation or the program 
can reimburse parents for their mileage.  The conference is held in 
Red Bluff.  A flyer and information will be shared via email with 
other PC reps that were not in attendance today.  


• Head (Start) to the Capitol Advocacy Day - March 23, 2023 in 
Sacramento.  A rally is also planned at the State Capitol.  


 
       If you are interested in attending any of these events please let  
       Lydia Navarro know by March 6th 2023   
       Contact info: (530)458-0350 ext. 10320  
       or by email:  lnavarro@ccoe.net 
 
7.0  Personnel    - None 
 
8.0  New Business  
  8.1  Approve the Ongoing Management System (Self-Assessment Process) 
   
    Result:  Approved 
    Motion:  Patricia Salazar 
    Second: Astrid Fernandez 
    Ayes:  Nicol Stephenson, Astrid Fernandez, Patricia Salazar & Marisa Apaseo 
 
  8.2  Approve the Internal Dispute (Impasse) Resolution Procedure 
  
    Result:  Approved 
    Motion:  Patricia Salazar 
    Second: Astrid Fernandez 
    Ayes:  Nicol Stephenson, Astrid Fernandez, Patricia Salazar & Marisa Apaseo 
 
9.0    Correspondence                   


9.1  MB 23-02 - Guidance to California State Preschool Program (CSPP) Contractors for  
  Children with Disabilities (Exceptional Needs). 
   
  Information is included in your packets.  Executive Director, Vicki Markss shared  
  information as presented.   
 


10.0 Seat Newly Elected Policy Council Representatives, Alternates, Community         
  Representatives/Past Parents 
 
  None 
 
 



mailto:lnavarro@ccoe.net





 


R:\POLICY COUNCIL\FY 2022-2023\Minutes\February 2023.docx                                     5 
 


11.0 Policy Council Executive Officer Elections 
  11.1 Secretary 
        
    Item will be tabled for next PC Meeting 
 
12.0 Announcements     
  Family Fair is being planned for April 15th.  More information will be sent out to families.  
     
13.0 Advanced Planning                


14.1  Next Scheduled Meeting Date:  March 22, 2023 at 9:00am  
  (Fourth Wednesday of the Month) at Education Village – Room E-2   
     


14.0 Meeting Adjournment  
  Meeting was adjourned at 10:04a.m.     
 
 
Minutes by:  Lydia Navarro, Family Engagement Coordinator   
   







OPERATING OBJECT


Head Start  


Budget


Head Start 


What we have 


spent


Balance


COSTS CODE 5210 5210


Certificated Salaries = Teachers, Administrators 1000's 446,733 232,403 214,330


Classified Salaries = Aides, Clerical staff and PSAs. 2000's 197,272 131,340 65,932
Benefits = Employer pays this portion of the employee's benefits 


- retirement, health insurance, workers comp, medicare, social 


security, state unemployment insurance. 3000's 274,444 156,172 118,272


Materials & Supplies  = Books, classroom supplies such as 


paper, crayons or markers, cleaning supplies, soap and 


detergent. 4000's 57,778 40,008 17,770


Operating Costs = Rent, mileage, repairs, utilities such as 


phone, PG&E, water etc. 5000's 278,045 108,311 169,734


Equipment = This is for larger items such as computers, new 


playground equipment or items with a cost of over $5,000.  6000's 161,000 66,163 94,837


Training and Technical Assistance = This is the money we 


use to send staff and parents to conferences, hire consultants to 


help us with the annual self review and train us on changes to 


our data processing program, hold training for teaching staff. 22,401 16,685 5,716


Indirect Costs = 7.25%, This is what we pay to CCOE so they 


provide us with help to process our payroll, write checks, do our 


annual audit, IT support. 7000's 90,935 54,453 36,482


TOTAL OPERATING COSTS TO DATE 1,528,608 805,534 723,074


% OF YEAR COMPLETED 67%


TOTAL BUDGET FOR 22/23 1,528,608 805,534


%  OF BUDGET SPENT TO DATE 52.7%


 Policy Council


Head Start Budget Report  
as of 


February 28, 2023


Fiscal Year 2022/2023


Item #5.1







Certificated Salaries = Teachers, Administrators 1000's 217,818 154,959 62,859


Classified Salaries = Aides, Clerical staff and PSAs. 2000's 147,316 103,454 43,862
Benefits = Employer pays this portion of the employee's benefits 


- retirement, health insurance, workers comp, medicare, social 


security, state unemployment insurance. 3000's 168,344 107,976 60,368
Materials & Supplies  = Books, classroom supplies such as 


paper, crayons or markers, cleaning supplies, soap and 


detergent. 4000's 35,906 23,530 12,376
Operating Costs = Rent, mileage, repairs, utilities such as 


phone, PG&E, water etc. 5000's 125,607 50,731 74,876


Equipment = This is for larger items such as computers, new 


playground equipment or items with a cost of over $5,000.  6000's 69,000 35,787 33,213


Training and Technical Assistance = This is the money we 


use to send staff and parents to conferences, hire consultants to 


help us with the annual self review and train us on changes to 


our data processing program, hold training for teaching staff. 14,702 9,453 5,249
Indirect Costs = 7.25%, This is what we pay to CCOE so they 


provide us with help to process our payroll, write checks, do our 


annual audit, IT support.   50,387 32,633 17,754


TOTAL OPERATING COSTS TO DATE 829,080 518,524 310,556


% OF YEAR COMPLETED 67%


TOTAL BUDGET FOR 22/23 829,080 518,524


%  OF BUDGET SPENT TO DATE 62.5%


 Policy Council


Early Head Start Budget Report  
as of 


February 28, 2023


Fiscal Year 2022-2023


Item #5.1







Certificated Salaries = Teachers, Administrators 1000's 13,552 13,557 (5)


Classified Salaries = Aides, Clerical staff and PSAs. 2000's 0 0 0


Benefits = Employer pays this portion of the employee's benefits 


- retirement, health insurance, workers comp, medicare, social 


security, state unemployment insurance. 3000's 8,949 7,393 1,556


Materials & Supplies  = Books, classroom supplies such as 


paper, crayons or markers, cleaning supplies, soap and 


detergent. 4000's 200 189 11


    Consulting Services= Contractor costs. 5000's 0 0 0


Equipment = Equipment and items with a cost of over $5,000.  6000's 10,845 10,842 3
Indirect Costs = 7.25%, This is what we pay to CCOE so they 


provide us with help to process our payroll, write checks, do our 


annual audit, IT support.   2,393 1,538 855


TOTAL COSTS TO DATE 35,939 33,519 2,420


% OF YEAR COMPLETED 67%


TOTAL BUDGET FOR 22/22 35,939 33,519


%  OF BUDGET SPENT TO DATE 93.3%


as of 
February 28, 2023


Fiscal Year 2022-2023


 Policy Council


AmRescuePI Budget Report  


Item #5.1







All Center Programs July August September October November December January February March April May June Total


1 Breakfasts 1670 2111 2411 2598 1910 1652 1771 2344


2 Lunches 1755 2154 2434 2624 1941 1650 1781 2344


3 Snacks 1516 1607 1572 1737 1228 982 950 1269


4 Total 4941 5872 6417 6959 5079 4284 4502 5957 0 0 0 0 44011


5


Reimbursement 


Received** 10,384.98$    12,682.60$   14,495.37$    16,521.59$      11,742.97$      10,003.15 10,778.90$  


6 Expected Reimbursement 9,913.90$      12,641.71$   14,528.97$    15,634.78$      11,232.27$      9,728.65$      10,264.64$  13,524.84$    


7


HS/EHS % of all meals 


served 31% 27% 38% 36% 38% 39% 39% 39%


8 HS/EHS Meal Count 1,573 1,585 2,252 2,416 1,827 1,670 1,756 2,251


Due to the blended classroom settings, the following rationale was used to arrive at the totals above.  (The Monthly Meal Counts, (items 1-4) should match and reconcile to the 


monthly claim submitted under contract # 06-2105-1J.  However, due to the blended classroom setting, the HS/EHS meal summary amounts and reimbursment amounts will not match    


as we are reporting using the fixed percentage claiming method rather than the actual  count)


Rationale by item number


1 Total number of breakfasts served for all center based programs (actuals)   


2 Total number of lunches served for all center based programs (actuals)    


3 Total number of snacks served for all center based programs (actual)


4 Total of all meals served for center based programs (actuals)


5 Cash reimbursement received by CCOE after monthly claim is sent- (if amount is zero then reimbursement is still outstanding)


6 Expected amount to be received by CCOE, rationale; multiply total amount to be received for all center based programs by the percentage of hs/ehs meals served (item 7)


7 % From Monthly CACFP Claim


8 HS/EHS meals served per month, calculation is total number of meals served for all programs (Item number 4) multiplied by HS/EHS % of all meals (item number 7)


Monthly Meal Counts 


Contract # 06-2105-1J


Head Start/Early Head Start Meal Summary


Item #5.1







Credit Card Ending # Bank Institution Date of Purchase Vendor Amount Staff Using Card Purchase Reason for Purchase


9867 US Bank 2/01/23-2/28/23 Cal Card 28.95$        Vicki Markss Amazon CCC - Office Supplies


10.67$        Vicki Markss Amazon Office Supplies for Data Support Assistant


225.64$      Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Infant Classroom Supplies 


42.00$        Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Preschool 1 Classroom Supplies


32.28$        Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Infant Classroom Supplies 


130.87$      Vicki Markss Amazon CS In-Service Day Supplies


54.84$        Vicki Markss Amazon WPLC-A Classroom Supplies


274.80$      Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Infant Classroom Supplies 


155.25$      Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Infant Classroom Supplies 


10.40$        Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Preschool 1 Classroom Supplies


183.00$      Vicki Markss Amazon WCC - Toddler Classroom Supplies


309.17$      Vicki Markss Insect Lore All Preschool Classroom Supplies


45.77$        Vicki Markss Walmart WCC - Preschool 1 Classroom Supplies


1,021.40$   Vicki Markss Vista Print Recruitment Supplies


2,117.63$   Vicki Markss Vista Print Recruitment Supplies


1,416.54$   Vicki Markss Vista Print Recruitment Supplies


Wayman's 76 337.67$      Food Service Staff Fuel Food Transportation


Messick's 69.65$        Maintenance Supplies CCC -  Outside Landscape drain


Messick's 186.17$      Maintenance Supplies CCC - Toilets


Messick's 11.78$        Maintenance Supplies CCC - T Classroom Furniture Repair


Messick's 7.50$          Maintenance Supplies WPLC - Shade Structure 


Messick's 18.22$        Maintenance Supplies CS Recruitment Supplies


Messick's 67.54$        Maintenance Supplies CS Recruitment Supplies


Williams Hardware 24.77$        Maintenance Supplies WCC - 90 Battery Pack


    Credit Card and Charge Account Expenditure Report 


As of 2/28/2023


COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION


Item #5.1







1


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Total


Requirement % YTD % Earned
Total $585,107 67% 65%$377,934.25


Report Format Copyright © Management Information Technology USA, Inc.


Feb 23 Total
$18,749.04 $28,378.20 $34,713.70 $49,486.59 $35,979.87 $145,876.07 $43,421.90 $21,328.88


$123.03 $123.03


Report Totals
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23


Williams PLC B
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Total


Feb 23 Total
$1982.61 $5703.99 $6555.82 $4563.17 $6026.56 $5947.88 $7458.41 $38238.44


$1416.17 $22311.03


Williams PLC
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23


Jan 23 Feb 23 Total
$534.99 $2014.08 $2970.11 $3438.10 $2273.98 $4624.33 $5039.27


$6333.34 $2541.21 $27510.27


Williams Children's Center
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22


$1628.72 $3679.43 $3626.91 $3760.67 $3422.37 $2517.62


Home Based
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Total


Total
$1062.11 $275.36 $135.74 $535.01 $660.87 $2669.09


$24904.84


Colusa PLC B
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23


Jan 23 Feb 23 Total
$125.88 $3976.04 $8228.89 $4125.49 $2429.90 $2320.91 $3697.73


$6745.27 $330.47 $44448.73


Colusa PLC A
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22


$3949.30 $5527.46 $6317.06 $7985.60 $7897.48 $5696.09


Colusa Children's Center
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Total


$31.47 $1231.47 $1595.00 $111419.25 $400.00 $114677.19


CHILDREN'S SERVICES
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Total


Feb 23 Total
$4490.54 $1492.33 $5176.99 $2431.07 $1707.24 $1581.37 $5554.47 $22434.01


$14204.15 $78123.57


Arbuckle Early Care & Ed. Center
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23


$11573.92 $10054.67 $8898.14 $11709.84 $10448.05 $11234.80


Arbuckle Children's Center
Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Total


Total
$196.70 $361.91 $377.64 $818.26 $220.28 $188.84 $330.42 $2494.05


Colusa County Office of Education
< No Site >


Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23


3/13/2023 Colusa County Office of Education Page
10:05 AM ChildPlus


4315 - Monthly In-Kind Amountsrtalamantes
Transaction Date: 7/1/2022 - 2/28/2023


Item #5.1







COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 


345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932  ♦  www.ccoe.net 
mwest@ccoe.net  ♦  p 530.458.0350  ♦  f 530.458.8054 


   


COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 


DATE:  Wednesday, March 8, 2023 


TIME:  4:00 pm  Board Business Meeting 


PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 


NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 


meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 


  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 
located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 


  This meeting will be recorded. 


   


A G E N D A 


        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 


1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 


2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 


3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 


4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas  information 
  Colusa County Adult School and S. William Abel Academy 


5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 


6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 


6.1 Superintendent’s Reports  information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – February Meeting 


6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 


6.3 Student Services – Chuck Wayman  information 


6.4 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 


Item #6.4.2







Colusa County Board of Education 
March 8, 2023, Agenda 
Page 2 


        DECISION 
7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 


7.1 Board President’s Report  information 


8.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 


9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 


9.1 Approve Minutes of the February 8, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  action 


10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 


10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 


10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 


10.4 Universal Prekindergarten (standing item)  information 


11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Second Interim Report  action 


11.2 Approve the 2022‐26 Art, Music and Instructional  action 
Materials Block Grant 


11.3 Consider Providing the 3% Off‐Schedule, One‐Time Salary  action 
Increase for 2022‐23 to the County Superintendent that was 
Given to Other County Office Staff 


11.4 Approve Nominee for Delegate Assembly Elections  action 
CSBA Subregion 4‐C (Colusa Sutter and Yuba Counties) 
One nominee – Nicole Orozco (Yuba City USD) 


11.5 Approve Resolution 22/23‐04 in Support of Funding for County  action 
Office of Education Operated Juvenile Court and Community Schools 


11.6 Statement of Economic Interests Form 700 due April 1, 2023  Information 


11.7 First Reading:  Board Policy Revision  information 
  BP 9011 Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information 


12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 


12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
April 12, 2023, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 


13.0 ADJOURNMENT 







July Aug Sept Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June


2023 148 190 168 168 173


2/7/2023 2/14/2023 2/21/2023 2/28/2023


Arbuckle Children's Center - Preschool 20 15  (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State 15 (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State 15  (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State 16(80%) 9 HS/ 7 State


Arbuckle Children's Center - Preschool CMIG)


Arbuckle Early Care and Education Center 20 16  (80%) 7 HS/ 9 State 16 (80%) 7 HS/ 9 State 16  (80%) 7 HS/ 9 State 16 (80%) 7 HS/ 9 State


Colusa Children's Center - Preschool 20 15  (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State 15 (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State 15  (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State 15 (75%) 7 HS/ 8 State


Colusa Children's Center - Preschool (CMIG)


Colusa Preschool Learning Center A 20 14  (70%) 9 HS/ 5 State 15 (75%) 10 HS/ 5 State 14  (70%) 9 HS/ 5 State 15 (75%) 10 HS/ 5 State


Colusa Preschool Learning Center B 20 16  (80%) 2 HS/ 14 State 15 (75%) 2 HS/ 13 State 15  (75%) 2 HS/ 13 State 15 (75%) 2 HS/ 13 State


Williams Children's Center- Preschool 1 20 21  (105%) 6 HS/ 15 State 20 (100%) 6 HS/ 14 State 20 (100%) 6 HS/ 14 State 20 (100%) 6 HS/ 14 State


Williams Children's Center- Preschool 2 (CMIG) 20


Williams Preschool Learning Center A 20 20  (100%) 14 HS/ 6 State 20 (100%) 14% HS/ 6 State 20 (100%) 14% HS/ 6 State 20 (100%) 14% HS/ 6 State


Williams Preschool Learning Center  B 20 16  (80%) 16 State 17 (85%) 17 State 18 (90%) 18 State 18 (90%) 18 State


Maxwell TK Collaboration 9  (100%) 6 HS/ 3 State 9 (100%) 6 HS/3 State 9  (100%) 6 HS/ 3 State 9 (100%) 6 HS/3 State


July Aug. Sept Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June


2/7/2023 2/14/2023 2/21/2023 2/28/2023


Arbuckle Children's Center - Infant 8 5  (62%) 3 Ehs/ 2 State 5 (62%) 3 EHS/ 2 State 7  (87.5) 1 EHS/ 6 State 5 (62%) 1 EHS/ 6 State


Arbuckle Children's Center - Infant (CMIG)


Arbuckle Children's Center - Toddler 8 7  (87.5) 5 EHS/  2 State 8 (100%) 5 EHS/ 3 State 8  (100%) 5 EHS/3 State 8 (100%) 5 EHS/ 3 State


Arbuckle Children's Center -Toddler (CMIG)


Colusa Children's Center - Infant 9 6  (67%) 3 EHS/ 3 State 5 (62%) 3 EHS/ 2 State 5  (62%) 3 EHS/ 2 State 5 (62%) 3 EHS/ 2 State


Colusa Children's Center - Infant (CMIG)


Colusa Children's Center- Toddler 8 7  (87.5) 3 EHS/ 4 State 6 (67%) 3 EHS/ 3 State 6  (67%) 3 EHS/ 3 State 6 (67%) 3 EHS/ 3 State


Colusa Children's Center- Toddler (CMIG)


Williams Children's Center- Infant 9 6  (67%) 2 EHS/ 4 State 5 (62%) 1 EHS/ 4 State 5  (62%) 1 Ehs/ 4 State 5 (62%) 1 EHS/ 4 State


Williams Children's Center - Infant 2 (CMIG) 8


Williams Children's Center - Toddler 8 4  (50%) 1 EHS/ 3 State 4 (50%) 1 EHS/ 3 State 4  (50%) 1 EHS/ 3 State 4 (50%) 1 EHS/ 3 State


Williams Children's Center - Toddler 2 (CMIG) 8


Home Base 


Home Base M. Ibarra 9  (75%) 9 EHS 9 (75%) 9 EHS 9  (75%) 9 EHS 9 (75%) 9 EHS


Feb-23


Total Enrollment Slots for HS = 106 and Total Enrollment for EHS Slots =62


Actual Enrollment for Head Start and CSPP 


Site and Classroom Name Capacity


Head Start Enrollment By Month 
Enrolled Slots 


Total Slots


Vacant Slots 


Actual Enrollment for Early Head Start, CCTR and CMIG 


Site and Classroom Name Capacity


Total Enrollment Slots for HS = 106 and Total Enrollment for EHS Slots =62
Early Head Start Enrollment By Month 


Enrolled Slots for Early Head Start 


Reserved Slots for Early Head Start


Vacant Slots for Early Head Start


Item #6.5.1







 


Item #6.5.1







* 1. Type of Submission: * 2. Type of Application:


* 3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:


5a. Federal Entity Identifier: 5b. Federal Award Identifier:


6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:


* a. Legal Name:


* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): * c. UEI:


* Street1:


Street2:


* City:


County/Parish:


* State:


Province:


* Country:


* Zip / Postal Code:


Department Name: Division Name:


Prefix: * First Name:


Middle Name:


* Last Name:


Suffix:


Title:


Organizational Affiliation:


* Telephone Number: Fax Number:


* Email:


* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):


* Other (Specify):


State Use Only:


8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:


d. Address:


e. Organizational Unit:


f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:


Application for Federal Assistance SF-424


Preapplication


Application


Changed/Corrected Application


New


Continuation


Revision


OMB Number: 4040-0004 


Expiration Date: 12/31/2022


09CH011054


Mrs.


CA: California


946002149


COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION


(530) 458-0350 x10313 (530) 458-0310


Ste B


Markss


09CH011054


N/A


USA: UNITED STATES


Colusa


Colusa County


VLFZLNLJW281


345 5th St


Director


95932-2445


Vicki


vmarkss@ccoe.net


Item # 7.1







* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:


Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:


Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:


* Other (specify):


* 10. Name of Federal Agency:


11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:


CFDA Title:


* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:


* Title:


13. Competition Identification Number:


Title:


14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):


* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:


Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.


Application for Federal Assistance SF-424


Year Five Refunding Application


Other (specify)


N/A


County Office of Education


93.600


Not Applicable


eGrants-N/A


Head Start


ACF-Head Start


Not Applicable


Colusa County







* a. Federal


* b. Applicant


* c. State


* d. Local


* e. Other


* f.  Program Income


* g. TOTAL


.


Prefix: * First Name:


Middle Name:


* Last Name:


Suffix:


* Title:


* Telephone Number:


* Email:


Fax Number:


* Signature of Authorized Representative: * Date Signed:


18. Estimated Funding ($):


21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements


herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to


comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims  may


subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)


** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency


specific instructions.


Authorized Representative:


Application for Federal Assistance SF-424


* a. Applicant


Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.


 b. Program/Project


* a. Start Date: * b. End Date:


16. Congressional Districts Of:


17. Proposed Project:


a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on


b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.


c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.


Yes No


** I AGREE


* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)


* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?


If "Yes", provide explanation and attach


2,130,378


2,662,973


CA-003


mwest@ccoe.net


Mr.


West


CA-003


(530) 458-0350 x10365


0


07/01/2023


532,595


Michael


Superintendent of Schools


06/30/2024







Head Start/Early Head Start ERSEA Recruitment Plan, Updated 1-21-2021 


CCOE – Children’s Services                
 HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START ERSEA RECRUITMENT PLAN 


 
CCOE-Children’s Services views recruitment as a direct correlation to program enrollment.  
Recruitment takes place every day, however, mass recruitment and recruitment events, and 
resources will be determined prior to each program year.  This plan oversees the Eligibility, 
Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance plans for all children in our programs. 
 
Staff Responsible: 
The Family Services Division Manager will oversee the areas of Eligibility, Recruitment, 
Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance (ERSEA), and the Family Services Supervisor has the 
direct responsibility for organizing and implementation of all recruitment efforts and ensuring a 
successful recruitment plan is in place for the program.  The Family Services Supervisor holds the 
direct responsibility, with the Program Services Assistants also responsible for the greatest impact 
of overall recruitment, enrollment, and success of children and families in our programs. In 
addition, other CCOE-Children’s Services employees will take active roles in organizing 
recruitment activities that may occur outside of the mass recruitment period. 
 
Organization of Recruitment Efforts: 
The Family Services Supervisor will support the Recruitment Coordinator in developing and 
maintaining a Recruitment Event Calendar and a Recruitment Tracker to document efforts and to 
schedule recruitment activities.  The Recruitment Coordinator and the Program Services Assistants 
will maintain monthly the Recruitment Tracker and list each business/organization that were 
visited and the type of recruitment provided. The Recruitment Tracker will be included in reporting 
during monthly Leadership Team meetings and Division meetings. 
 
ERSEA Committees: 
On an annual basis, in February, the recruitment process will be reviewed, evaluated and revised 
as needed by the ERSEA “Advisory” Committee which is led by the Family Services Division 
Manager and Family Services Supervisor and made up of Policy Council Members, Special Needs 
Coordinator, Special Education, Area Manager, teacher and Program Services Assistants.  
Members on this committee will provide updates on regulations and standards, provide 
comprehensive input for a more efficient process, and targeted audience. Recommendations and 
any changes will be presented to the Policy Council for approval in February.  The following will 
be reviewed:  
 


 The Recruitment Plan/Annual Timeline 
 The Application and Head Start and Early Head Start Selection Criteria 


Worksheet 
 


An ERSEA “Recruitment” Committee will support recruitment efforts throughout the entire 
service area and identify specific areas for focused recruitment as needed.  The Family Services 
Supervisor will lead monthly meetings that are made up of members from the ERSEA Advisory 


Item #7.2







Head Start/Early Head Start ERSEA Recruitment Plan, Updated 1-21-2021 


Committee, Content Area Specialists/Coordinators, and Foster Youth Coordinator, teachers, and 
Data Clerk, Area Managers, and community representatives.  The Family Services Supervisor will 
provide updated flyers, posters, and materials to the recruitment committee and ensure packets are 
created prior to meetings.  All recruitment materials must receive approval from the Executive 
Team and will be disseminated from the main office to be used for ERSEA purposes. 
 


Recruitment Efforts 
 


During the February meeting, the ERSEA Recruitment Committee will submit lists of local 
community service agencies/businesses/service providers located throughout the county that 
provide services to families that may meet eligibility criteria requirements.  Committee members 
will be placed in teams.  The teams will identify a team leader and plan a calendar.  Each team   
will make personal visits to community partner agencies that provide services and provide 
recruitment materials, including but not limited to flyers, posters, brochures, etc.  
 
All families will be added to on an Inquiry Tracker when they submit and inquiry or begin an 
application in any center/home-based option.  The Inquiry Tracker will include their name, 
address, telephone number, the child’s name and date of birth and the origin of the inquiry.  A 
Program Services Assistant will make contact with the family to begin the application process.  
The Inquiry Tracker will be included in reporting during monthly Leadership Team meetings and 
Division meetings. 
 
Recruitment at Local Community Service Agencies: 
The Recruitment Coordinator will support the Program Services Assistants in continuing to update 
distributed recruitment materials including but not limited to banners, flyers, posters and floor 
standing signs, brochures, handouts, etc. within their appropriate zip codes areas in efforts to fill 
all vacancies within 30 days.  The Recruitment Coordinator will support the Program Services 
Assistants in maintaining recruitment materials and restocking at community partner agencies and 
businesses monthly. All recruitment activities will be documented  on the Recruitment Tracker.   
  
Recruitment Within Current Programs and Policy Council Involvement: 
The Family Services Supervisor and/or Program Services Assistants will ensure applications are 
available at all CCOE-Children’s Services sites.  Application packets should be accessible to all 
potential applicants. The Program Services Assistants will be prepared to provide immediate 
information, and possible application interviews, to persons who walk in when possible.  We want 
to avoid asking potential participants to go elsewhere for assistance or information.  Families are 
able to inquire about our programs by telephone at all times, and are able to leave a message if 
calling after work hours.  Inquirers are encouraged to leave a telephone message on a designated 
extension and telephone calls are returned by the appropriate staff.  Parental involvement is another 
way to refer eligible families.  Brochures and recruitment materials will be handed out to parents 
and distributed during Policy Council meetings. 
 
A-frame posters and banner displays will be displayed at all centers and rotated on a monthly basis 
to other locations in the community.   
 
Recruitment of Children with Special Needs: 







Head Start/Early Head Start ERSEA Recruitment Plan, Updated 1-21-2021 


The Special Needs Coordinator and Family Services Supervisor will work together to distribute a 
recruitment folder and recruitment materials, posters, brochures, etc.  to all agencies that provide 
services to children with disabilities within the service area, as well as for services outside of the 
area.  The Special Needs Coordinator and Family Services Supervisor will ensure all 
inquiries/referrals of children with disabilities are maintained to determine eligibility for programs.   
 
Recruitment and Participation at Community Events: 
CCOE-Children’s Services will participate in community events throughout the program year that 
are focused on children and families.  Community event participation will include the annual 
Family Fair, Community Baby Shower, Ampla Health Fair, Kindergarten Registration events, and 
other community events.  The ERSEA Recruitment committee will identify community events to 
participate in and assist with organization of each event.  
CCOE-Children’s Services vehicles will be used as mobile advertisement.  CCOE-Children’s 
Services name will be prominently displayed on all vehicles and meal delivery vehicles.   All 
vehicles will be supplied with agency brochures and recruitment materials to promote all efforts. 
 
Web-Based Recruitment: 
The CCOE-Children’s Services website includes access to online applications.  The Family 
Services Supervisor will submit flyers and posters to the CCOE Communications and Public 
Relations Coordinator regularly to promote recruitment and enrollment efforts on the website and 
social media. 
 
Recruitment Materials: 
Posters, brochures, flyers, and recruitment materials, etc. will be utilized at community events and 
for distribution.  A presentation table with tablecloths and floor standing posters and program 
posters will be used at events to exhibit a positive and professional image.  The posters will be 
placed in churches, agencies, schools, businesses, etc. when not being used as part of community 
events to increase awareness about our programs as determined by the Family Services Supervisor 
/Recruitment Coordinator/Program Services Assistants. Employees will wear CCOE Identification 
badges and when possible, will wear CCOE-Children’s Services shirts with logo.   
 
Recruitment & Outreach: 
The mass recruitment and outreach efforts will begin in February/March and include: 
 


 Radio and Public Service Announcements both in English and Spanish 
 Newspaper and Press Releases 
 Talk to current parents about enrolling eligible siblings. 
 Visit agencies and provide flyers, posters, recruitment materials, brochures 
 Outreach tables at selected sites in recruitment areas 
 Contact Elementary School offices to provide recruitment 


materials/activities for upcoming year.  Attend Kindergarten Registration in 
each district. 


 Recruitment Flyers distributed to selected public primary and elementary 
schools (K-6 grade)  


 Informational inserts may be mailed through Social Services with monthly 
checks 







Head Start/Early Head Start ERSEA Recruitment Plan, Updated 1-21-2021 


 Posters will be distributed and displayed throughout the county and include 
apartment complexes. 


 Flyers will be distributed to current Head Start parents to inform them of 
recruitment efforts 


 CCOE Website and social media sites 
 Contact will be made with community agencies and collaborative partners 


(see Places to Recruit document) 
 Special Needs Coordinator will contact agencies such as, but not limited to, 


SELPA and Alta Regional 
 Families will be contacted to reapply for Head Start using the Centralized 


Eligibility Lists (CEL) that are generated for these two situations: children 
who did not get into the program for the current school year but are still age 
eligible to apply for the next year, and the eligible siblings list 


 Door to door recruitment if need is determined by the Community 
Assessment 


Staff Training: 
Program Service Assistants, Data Support Assistant, Education Program Supervisors and key 
education staff will receive training from the Family Services Supervisor in the following specific 
topics: 
 


A.  Application and Enrollment Training when hired and in February/March  
• How to complete the Application and Selection Criteria worksheet 
 The data entry systems 
 Review process for returning children for next program year 
 How to complete the enrollment packet and apply new forms and file format 
 System for completion of health requirements 
 Numbers of completed applications needed per community/location 
 Process of closing files and maintaining confidentiality 


 
B. Family Services Supervisor will provide training prior to mass recruitment and mass 


enrollment activities. 
 


C.  File Breakdown Training in September 
 Review of file system: Child/Family Binders and distributing paperwork 


appropriately 
 Files closed and to storage in October. 


 
The Family Services Division Manager and Family Services Supervisor will provide training on 
ERSEA systems and related procedures during Pre-Service and In-Services trainings as identified. 


 
HEAD START AND EARLY HEAD START SELECTION CRITERIA SYSTEM 


 
The formal process used for the selection of children will be referred to as the Head Start and Early 
Head Start Selection Criteria System.  Selection criteria will be established in the following 
categories: 


1.   Age 







Head Start/Early Head Start ERSEA Recruitment Plan, Updated 1-21-2021 


2.   Income 
3.   Parental Status 
4.   Special Selection Criteria 
     (Subcategories reflective of Head Start Act) 
5.   Special Needs Criteria 
 


As a part of the application process, children will be assigned priority points at the time of the 
application using the Head Start and Early Head Start Selection Criteria worksheet.   The number 
of points assigned by staff is determined and is entered into the data system (Centralized Eligibility 
List).  The Centralized Eligibility List will produce a wait list in order of each child’s priority 
ranking. 
 
Selection: 
The selection will take place in the month of April (this date changes annually 120 days prior to 
beginning day of the following year).  Eligible children will be selected for each center according 
to their priority ranking on the data system report and the number of allotted slots for each center 
(contingent upon the number of returning children).  The children selected will be contacted for 
enrollment.  All other Applications will remain on the Centralized Eligibility List (CEL).  Over 
income, slots will be filled based on priority points and after the eligible list of children has been 
exhausted.  Selection is ongoing as vacancies occur in year-round programs.  Children with 
documented disabilities will be placed in the least restrictive environment.  Classroom 
composition and individual child needs will be considered to ensure appropriate placement. 
 
Enrollment Applications: 
The Program Services Assistants complete all application packets for all program options.  Once 
completed, applications are provided to the Family Services Supervisor for review.  All completed 
applications are maintained utilizing the Centralized Eligibility List database and monitored by the 
Family Services Division Manager and the Family Services Supervisor.  Applications are 
completed and accepted throughout the year for the most current program year (parents need to 
keep application up to date).  The Program Services Assistants are available to assist parents with 
the application process. The application is accompanied with the Head Start and Early Head Start 
Selection Criteria Worksheet and a list of documents that are needed for completion. 
 
Applications are accepted on an ongoing basis throughout the school year due to year-round 
programs.  Applications received after the selected date in April will be considered Applications 
on File and those children will be placed on a Wait List or enrolled as space becomes available. 
 
Program Services Assistants will provide a list of all currently enrolled children, cover sheets and 
labels for each child to each part-day classroom teacher on the first day of preservice.  For full-
day programs, this will occur at least three days prior to the child’s first date of attendance. 
 
Enrollment Process: 
On the selected April date the enrollment process begins after selection has taken place.  Data 
system reports will be generated to assist selected staff to contact selected families to schedule an 
enrollment appointment.  At the enrollment appointment, the parent will be assisted by a trained 
staff member to fill out the forms included in the enrollment packet.  After the enrollment 







Head Start/Early Head Start ERSEA Recruitment Plan, Updated 1-21-2021 


appointment, staff will work closely with the families to ensure that all health requirements and 
necessary documents are completed before the first date of attendance.  As information and 
documentation are received, it is entered into the data entry system; reports are frequently printed 
for selected staff in order to know the complete/incomplete status of children. 
Intakes/enrollments are ongoing as vacancies occur in year-round programs. 


 
Placement: 
By the end of July, children who were accepted into the program and have completed all the 
necessary requirements and documentation will be assigned to class sessions and home based 
options. Accepted children who have not completed the necessary requirements and 
documentation by the day prior to the first date of attendance may be moved to the Wait List. 
 
Vacancies in the class sessions will be filled from the Wait List with children who have completed 
all the necessary documentation.  Selection criteria will decide which child is next when all the 
children on the Wait List have completed all necessary requirements. The oldest child will be the 
next criterion in the event of a tie of priority points followed by the child with the lowest income 
when choosing which child is placed first.  If two or more children are tied in criterion regarding 
both age and income, the next criterion will be the date applied (oldest application first). 
Placement is ongoing as vacancies occur in year-round programs. 


 
Orientation: 
In August, all families who have an enrolled child will be invited to attend a small group orientation 
at the centers with the appropriate staff.  This orientation will occur before class begins or as 
needed throughout the year with individual orientations being held with newly enrolled children.      
 
Evaluation: 
In November, there will be an evaluation of the recruitment/enrollment process which just took 
place.  There will be a review of what worked, what didn’t work, and an opportunity for staff to 
brainstorm ideas/suggestions for improvement for both the EHS and HS programs.  The following 
February, meeting minutes from the November Evaluation Meeting, as well as the current 
Recruitment Plan and Head Start and Early Head Start Selection Criteria Worksheet, will be 
reviewed as the new recruitment year begins.  If any changes to the Recruitment Plan or the Head 
Start and Early Head Start Selection Criteria Worksheet are requested or necessary, the amended 
Recruitment Plan and the amended Head Start and Early Head Start Selection Criteria Worksheet 
will be brought before the Policy Council in February/March for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 







CHILD'S NAME:_____________________________ TODAY'S DATE:______________
STAFF'S INITIALS: ____________


DOB: ______________________________________
Circumstances Points Points Comments


Awarded
Age Selection Criteria


4 Years of age by September 1st 150
3 Years of age by September 1st 50
2 Years of age by September 1st. 43
Pregnant Mom 37


Income Selection Criteria
Income Eligible at 100% 97
Income Eligible at 130% 77
Over Income 0
*Government Based Programs (SNAP. Medical, TANF) 97
*SSI Income Eligible 97
*SSI Over Income 57


Parental Status
*Referral (Adoption in Progress, Bridge Program, CPS) 97
Single Parent 75
Parent under 18 yrs old 102
*Grandparent/Legal Guardian 55
*Parent Incarcerated/Domestic Violence/Substance Abuse 77
Current CCOE-Children's Services Employee 37


Special Selection Criteria


Mckinney Vento Act (Migrant Housing) 97


Identification of Dual Language Learner 57


Parent has less than High School Education 37
*Sibling or Parent Diagnosed with Special Needs (57 points for 
first family member, 20 points to additional members) 57-97


Family previously enrolled in EHS/HS (1 yr ago) 37
*Referral from MDT, Behavioral Health/Qualified Licensed 
Professional or Special Education/Alta Regional 77


Special Needs Criteria √ if yes


This section to be filled by Special Needs Coordinator or Family 
Services Supervisor
Parent Suspects Child Disabilities 37
*IFSP/IEP 1 Service 97
*IFSP/IEP 2 Services 122
*IFSP/IEP 3 Services 172
*IFSP/IEP 4 Services 222


Grand Total
*Documents must be provided 


EARLY HEAD, HEAD START and PREGNANT MOMS


Points may be awarded based on family/child circumstances.  Check all that apply. 


Colusa County Office of Education-Children's Services 
SELECTION CRITERIA







  


2022-2023 


 


 


Annual Self-Assessment 
Process 


 


Colusa County Office of Education-Children’s Services 


345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932 


www.CCOE.net 


 


Our Mission 


 


“Promoting quality 
school readiness within 
the earliest years in 
collaboration with our 
community partners”. 


 
 


Item #7.3







Section 1:  Introduction 


Program Description 


 


Context for Self-Assessment 


It is the goal of Colusa CCOE to conduct a self- assessment annually in accordance with the Head 


Start Program Performance Standard 1302.102 (2) (i) to effectively oversee progress towards 


program goals, evaluate service quality, and guide continuous quality improvement.  


   


Documents from the Office of Head Start, A to Z Guiding Principles and the Head Start 


Management Systems Wheel were used to guide the self-assessment process.   The Self-


Assessment team is comprised of the management Leadership Team, administrative and teaching 


staff, Policy Council Representatives, and community partners.  A timeline is developed to invite, 


train, and engage the team, collect and analyze targeted program data centered on program 


strengths.  During the process, the Leadership Team directs specialized service area data to be 


analyzed. 


 


Methodologies included observations, file checklists, employee feedback, and interviews that were 


linked to program compliance.  Data sources reviewed by the Self-Assessment team include the 


review of last year’s Self-Assessment data, outcomes data for children and parents, ongoing 


management and monitoring systems, data systems, and data related to content areas.  Discoveries 


and outcomes from the Self-Assessment team is used to inform future program planning and 


continuous improvement.   


 


The Phases of the Self-Assessment process included five phases: 


PRE: From Ongoing Monitoring to Self-Assessment 


• Items brought to the annual self-assessment are prioritized. 


 Phase 1:  Design the Process 


• Identify and invite team members to join the team. 


 Phase 2:  Engage the Team 


• Orient and facilitate the self-assessment team. 


 Phase 3:  Analyze and Dialogue 







• Explore data analysis techniques. 


 Phase 4:  Recommend 


• Group discoveries, sort recommendations. 


• Progress on Program Goals 


• Systemic Issues 


• Innovations 


 Phase 5:  Prepare Report 


 Determine information for final report. 


 POST:  From self-assessment to Program Planning. 


 Create the link from self-assessment back to each part of ongoing program planning. 


 


Self-Assessment Results 


The self-assessment team reviewed systems in focus areas that identified programmatic strengths 


and areas to be strengthened.   The Leadership Team utilizes results from the self-assessment to  


develop action plans that improve management systems and overall performance.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 The following focus areas are areas for review: 


 


Focus Area Areas for Review 


1.  ERSEA  Evaluate the effectiveness of current 


enrollment, recruitment, selection, 


eligibility, and attendance efforts and 


monitoring systems. 


2.  Education & Child Development  Evaluate the effectiveness of professional 


development and training opportunities, 


screenings, assessments, children with 


disabilities, learning environments, and 


monitoring systems.   


3. Family and Community 


Engagement 


 Evaluate the effectiveness for engaging 


families in parent meetings, parent 


playgroup/socializations, parenting, 


pregnancy, and male involvement and 


monitoring systems. 


4. Health  


 


 


Evaluate health status, follow-up, mental 


health, nutrition, safety practices, and 


monitoring systems. 


5. Program Design and Management  


  


 


Governance, record-keeping and 


reporting, ongoing monitoring, Human 


Resources, Fiscal, organizational 


structure, Facilities, equipment, and 


monitoring systems. 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 







Identified Insight that Leads to Success: 


The Self-Assessment Team identifies program successes and areas to strengthen upon.The 


Leadership Team will utilize this plan to make upward and informed decisions towards 


continuous program improvement.   


 


Conclusion 


CCOE is highly respected for its high performance and will continue to strive towards highest 


quality.  Program data will determine necessary directions towards quality improvement. The 


Leadership Team monitors and measures program progress during monthly Leadership Team 


meetings. 


The COVID-19 Pandemic health crisis has had a significant impact on our programs.   CCOE 


developed and followed strong protocols to maintain the highest degree of health and safety to 


prevent further spread of illness and will continue to ensure that stringent health practices remain 


high priority. 







 


 


  


The foundation to identify 


community needs and strengths 


to improve family and child 


outcomes within Colusa County.  


Community 


Assessment 


Report 
      


Vicki Markss2019-2024 


 


Colusa County Office of Education 


Children’s Services 


345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932 


Item #7.4







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


1 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


Table of Contents         Pages 1-2 


About the Community Assessment       Page 3 


Executive Summary         Pages 4-5 


 Geography & Population       Page 5 


Overview of the State of the Grantee      Pages 6-9 


 Agency Background        Pages 6-9 


 Demographics          Page 9  


Methodology          Pages 10-14 


 Planning Committee, Project Phases & Sources of Information  Pages 10-11 


Situation Analysis 


Strategic Assessment 


Implementation Plan 


 Overview of Evaluation Process      Pages 11-12 


 Purpose of Assessment       Page 12 


 Governing Structure        Pages 13-14 


Service Area Data         Pages 15-19 


 Local Demographics 


Economic Activities       Pages 16-19 


Principle Source of Income & Median Income Level  Pages 20-21 


Poverty Level & Unemployment Rates    Pages 22-23 


Determining Community Strengths, Needs, and Resources                                 Pages 20-28 


                        Children Experiencing Homelessness                                                 Page 23-24 


Children in Foster Care/Children with Disabilities                            Pages 24-25 


Geographical Map of Colusa County                                                 Page 26 


  Racial, Ethnic & Language Composition of Children & Families Pages 27-28 


  Gender & Ages                                                                                   Page 28 


  Household Composition      Pages 28 


Identified Needs         Pages 28-33 


 Head Start Enrolled Children & Families Educational Needs                       Page 28-39  







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


2 
 


 Incidence of Child Abuse and Neglect                                                           Page 30 


 Preventative Health Care and Immunizations                                                Page 30-31 


 Nutritional Needs                                                                                            Page 32-34 


 Mental Health Services                                                                                   Page 34 


 Transportation  Services                                                                                 Page 34-35 


 COVID-19 Pandemic                                                                                      Page 35-36 


 


Community Strengths and Resources      Pages 36-42 


 Colusa County Collaborative Partnerships                                                     Page 36 


 Community Collaboration                                                                              Page 36-37 


 Achieving Program Goals                                                                              Pages 37-38 


 Implementation of Program Performance Standards                                     Page 37 


 Quality Improvement                                                                                      Page 38 


 And Literacy For All                                                                                       Page 39-40 


 Community Coordination with Other Early Childhood Programs                 Page 41-42 


 


  







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


3 
 


About the Community Assessment 


As required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards 1302.11 Determining community 


strengths, needs, and resources, (b) Community wide strategic planning and needs assessment 


(community assessment), CCOE must conduct a community assessment to help determine long 


term program goals and objectives.   


(1) To design a program that meets community needs, and builds on strengths and resources, a 


program must conduct a community assessment at least once over a five-year grant period.  


 (2) A program must annually review and update the community assessment to reflect any 


significant changers including increased availability of publicly-funded pre-kindergarten 


(including an assessment of how the pre-kindergarten available in the community meets the needs 


of the parents and children served by the program, and whether it is offered for a full school day), 


rates of family and child homelessness, and significant shifts in community demographics and 


resources. 


(3)  A program must consider whether the characteristics of the community allow it to include 


children from diverse economic backgrounds that would be supported by other funding sources, 


including private pay, in addition to the program’s eligible funded enrollment.  A program must 


not enroll children from diverse economic backgrounds if it would result in a program serving less 


that its eligible funded enrollment. 


The community assessment process provides CCOE insight towards identified issues and trends 


within our county service area that will directly affect the children and families with the highest 


need.  This community assessment is a collaborated effort with community collaborative partners 


to identify available resources and identified gaps within our county resources. 


  


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


4 
 


Executive Summary 


Colusa County Office of Education – Children’s Services (CCOE) serves as the grantee for Early 


Head Start, Head Start, and State funded services for Colusa County.  The Community Assessment 


is used as part of our organizational management system and will be completed during year one of 


our five-year grant cycle.    CCOE collaborates with collaborative community agencies and 


stakeholders annually to determine significant changes and needs within the community.  The 


Community Needs Assessment allows CCOE to evaluate and identify areas within the community 


that are working well and areas with the most critical needs.   The comprehensive Community 


Needs Assessment allows CCOE to make sound programmatic and management decisions based 


on assessments, data collection, and community input that would best meet the families and 


children that we serve.    The Community Needs Assessment is reviewed and updated on an annual 


basis prior to submission of our continued funding application.  The Community Needs 


Assessment review allows CCOE to identify needs, make programmatic changes, and decisions 


towards implementation of a high quality program within the community that supports our vision 


and program goals. 


 


Our CCOE Mission  


 


Our CCOE - Children's Services Vision  


"To promote school readiness within the earliest years in collaboration with our community 


partners.” 


 


As an advocate for educated, socially responsible citizens, Colusa County Office of 


Education will: 


Communicate Effectively 


Collaborate Cooperatively 


Operate Efficiently 


And 


Educate Totally 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


5 
 


The mission statement of CCOE is the foundation upon which the agency's goals, objectives and 


strategies are built.   CCOE is faced with many challenges that provides limitations to serving 


families within Colusa County due to limitations and its rural designation.   


 


CCOE is located in Colusa County, which is a small, rural community in Northern California.  


Colusa County has a population of 21, 419 (United States Census Bureau, estimates, 2014) that 


reside within a land area of 1,150.73 square mile radius with only 3,879 employed showing a 


significantly high unemployment rate.  Many areas within the county are rural with very limited 


resources.  According to 2010 U.S. Census data, there are an average of 18.6 people living within 


each square mile of the County, thus demonstrating Colusa County's rural designation.  Census 


data from the year 2000 shows there were 18,804 people living in the County within 6,097 


households (averaging 3.1 people in each household).  By the year 2010, census data revealed an 


increase of 2,615 people living in the County, resulting in an 8.7791% increase in population over 


the past decade.  Colusa County's population is small, serving as home to 21,419 residents residing 


amongst 7,883 households (averaging 2.7 people in each household).  


 


CCOE was forced to change its service delivery and closed a State funded preschool classroom 


near the elementary school in the community of Maxwell in 2017, due to lack of available families 


and low attendance.  The population in Maxwell declined when the only market and one of the 


main restaurants closed.  Despite these challenges, CCOE was able to relocate the State Preschool 


classroom to Williams where the community has expected growth. CCOE serves families in the 


most rural areas through Early Head Start weekly home visiting to provide Early Head Start 


services in rural areas of the community.   


 


Families within Colusa County rely on Federal and State subsidized programs to survive because 


of costs such as housing and living expenses. Homelessness continues to increase, as many 


families are living with other families, move into temporary housing, and/or stay with others to 


share cost of living expenses.   


 


 California minimum wage continues to increase annually through 2023 causing families who are 


employed to be over the Head Start income guidelines therefore, fewer families qualify for 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


6 
 


subsidized quality care and educational programs.  As minimum wage increases, cost of living 


increase however, families that were once eligible no longer qualify due to the base eligibility 


requirements. 


 


Overview of the State of the Grantee 


CCOE began implementation of its vision of serving Colusa County's youngest children in 1970 


by opening a California Migrant program through the California Department of Education.  In 


1985, CCOE expanded services and impacted the community significantly by receiving State 


funding to operate a Resource and Referral program to directly assist parents in finding quality 


child care services.  In 1986, CCOE began administering the State funded Alternative Payment 


Program that subsidizes childcare costs for income eligible families.  


 


 In 1990, CCOE became a Head Start grantee and began operating the federally funded program 


geared toward providing comprehensive services to the lowest income eligible and most 


vulnerable three and four-year-old children who reside in Colusa County.  CCOE expanded its 


early care and education services in 1994 when it received State funding through a General Child 


Care contract and began providing full day, full-year childcare services to low-income families in 


its own center-based childcare settings.   


 


Through a national competitive grant application process in 2001, CCOE received Federal funding 


to begin an Early Head Start program serving income eligible families and our youngest 


population, infants and toddlers.  With a strong desire to ensure school readiness for the County’s 


youngest population of children ages 0-5 years, CCOE became the grantee of State Preschool 


funding in 2003.  To date, CCOE administers all subsidized childcare and state preschool programs 


offered in Colusa County through its Children's Services Department.   In addition to operating a 


multitude of State and Federally funded programs, CCOE also serves as a liaison between families 


and community resources to ensure community residents have access to early education services 


and to connect families with agencies who can better serve their specific needs. 


The CCOE Children's Services Department currently employs 86 staff members that provides 


direct services towards positively influencing the lives of families and children.  CCOE works with 


46 licensed family childcare providers, eight (8) licensed exempt family childcare providers, two 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


7 
 


(2) private licensed childcare center, and one (1) licensed exempt private center to provide direct 


or subsidized care to approximately 180 children who receive subsidized childcare in private, 


licensed center-based programs and family day care homes.   


 


CCOE and other community agencies work hard to serve the County's residents the best they can 


despite the rural nature of the County.  Based on Colusa County’s geographical layout and need 


for service due to statistical poverty levels, unemployment rates, and racial/ethnic and language 


composition, CCOE has strategically placed centers with qualified and capable staff throughout 


the County.  Center locations were determined by previous community assessments and are located 


in areas identified as having the greatest need.  


 


CCOE has a top Executive Team that meets on a weekly basis and a Leadership Team that meets 


monthly.  Two Area Managers are located at full day centers to be centrally located and available 


to staff as needed, and the other located in Williams.  An ERSEA Area Manager is located at the 


main office.  Four Program Services Assistants are housed at full-day centers in Arbuckle, Colusa, 


and Williams and are readily available to meet visitors and conduct intake and enrollments, to 


recruit new families, and serve our enrolled families.   


 


Children learn to be inquisitive through play experiences and learn 


self-confidence and independent learning. 


 


A project made by children and displayed during a classroom 


 Open House. 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


8 
 


CCOE provides Early Head Start, Head Start, and State funded early care and education programs 


throughout the county in Arbuckle, Colusa, and Williams.  CCOE program options include part 


day, full day, and full-year center based options for our youngest children ages birth through 5 


years.  CCOE operates EHS home visiting, six infant and toddler classrooms, seven part-day 


preschools, one six hour part-day preschool, and three full-day, full-year preschools throughout 


the county.  CCOE does not currently have any delegate agencies as all services are operated 


through CCOE. 


 


CCOE serves 62 children in EHS and 106 in HS programs and blends State funding to extend 


service hours and serve more of the community in high quality settings in which we live.  Services 


were selected according to demographic need.  CCOE strategically placed part-day programs and 


full-day programs within the communities designated with the greatest need. CCOE believes that 


preparing children and their families for future success and opportunities for life-long learning is 


our purpose.  The main office of CCOE is located in the town of Colusa.   


 


CCOE operates three full day year round children centers for infants’ toddlers, and preschool aged 


children, utilizing blended Federal and State funds to support full day services, in the communities 


of Arbuckle, Colusa, and Williams.    


 


The Arbuckle community is home to our Arbuckle Early Care and Education Center that serves 


one part day Head Start classroom in the AM session and one State Preschool in the PM session.  


This center is located near a residential area and apartment complex so is walking distance for 


many families.  The Arbuckle Children’s Center is located between the Pierce Joint School District 


High School and Johnson Junior High, which is convenient for parents that have older children. 


 


Our Colusa classrooms are located on the same block that we like to call the Building Block of our 


community.  The Colusa Children’s Center is conveniently located next to one Head Start  


classroom that operates a six hour day five days per week.  The Colusa Preschool Learning Centers 


A & B, operates one part day State preschool and one full day preschool using blended funding.   


The Colusa sites are within walking distance to one another, which builds collaboration amongst 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


9 
 


staff and convenience for parents.  Burchfield Primary School is adjacent to our Colusa classrooms 


that allows us to collaborate towards positive transitioning practices.   


 


Located in the Williams community, CCOE operates one part day Head Start and two part day 


State Preschool programs on the Williams Elementary School campus.  The Williams Children’s 


Center is across town and located near the Farm Labor Housing in a more rural part of Williams.  


The Williams Children’s Center is unique as we have a specific preschool classroom that opens 


seasonally to serve children from migrant families and expand infant and toddler services to meet 


the growing need. 


 


Since Colusa County is agriculturally – based, CCOE operates a state funded seasonal migrant 


program to meet the abundant needs of our farming community.  This full-day program allows 


CCOE to serve 43 children ages 0-5 years that migrate into the county for seasonal farm labor 


employment with their families.  This program is conveniently located near the Colusa County 


Migrant Farm Housing that provides seasonal housing for migrant farm workers during the 


agricultural season.  CCOE understands these families work long hours in the fields and change 


our operation hours according to the needs for the families, we serve.  This program operates as 


early as five in the morning to accommodate fluctuating field crops and long working hours of 


these families.   


 


Two Early Head Start Home – Based Educators travel throughout the county to provide 


educational services and parental support for twenty-four families including services to low 


income pregnant women.  Home Based Educators conduct weekly home visits within the families 


own home and provides group socialization experiences and activities two times per month.  Group 


Socializations are held at the Colusa Resource Center where families are encouraged to partake in 


parenting and nutrition classes, other playgroups, and community events.   


 


Demographics:  CCOE operates subsidized childcare services through the Alternative Payment 


and CalWORKs programs.  Approximately 171 children ages birth through 12 years of age 


received childcare services offered through our Alternative Payment Program while 46 licensed 


Daycare Providers received professional development and training to ensure families who are 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


10 
 


working, in school, or training, receive quality care through our Resource and Referral Program.  


CCOE serves approximately 517 children through our comprehensive services. 


 


Methodology 


CCOE conducts a thorough community needs assessment every five years.   A strategic plan is 


derived through an in-depth assessment of current community circumstances and trends.  CCOE 


will assess trends that influence children and families, as well as evaluate the system of service 


delivery by its staff. The Program Planning Cycle Diagram below identifies the planning process 


used around the planning cycle. 


 


Planning Cycle Diagram 


 


 Clear and concise quality monitoring systems is an important factor to identify progress, quality, 


and changing needs.   A consistent system must be derived in order to set a clear direction for 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


11 
 


CCOE, to invest resources more effectively, to resolve current challenges and/or avoid future 


problems, and for creating a framework for communicating with and among staff and parents, 


funding sources, local elected officials, businesses and other stakeholders.   CCOE's ultimate goal 


is to have positive impact on children and families residing within the County's boundaries and to 


ensure children have access to early education opportunities and are receiving services to improve 


the lives of each family in our community 


 


The process involved a facilitated process to reach consensus within CCOE on the strategic 


direction to be taken by the department and to be promoted within its program and the community 


as a whole in relation to infant, toddler, preschool, and childcare options for children and their 


families.  The purpose of this phase was to define where CCOE is going, an allocation priority of 


its resources and staff, and the strategies that will be pursued to get there.  The steps in this phase 


were to 1) define goals and performance -based objectives; 2) develop strategies; and 3) create the 


document. 


 


Multiple sources were used to gather data.    Community collaboration with other agencies 


identified changes within the community and services available to families.    CCOE  program data 


analysis system included ChildPlus, produced systemic reports used to generated program data for 


eligible Head Start and Early Head Start children served, and NOHO data system for children who 


receive State funded services.  In addition, a Family Interests, Needs and Assessment survey was 


utilized to get direct feedback from families receiving Head Start, Early Head Start and/or State 


funded services.  Significant efforts were put into conducting a thorough assessment of the 


community in order to ensure CCOE is positively influencing the community in the areas identified 


by an array of residents and a multitude of agency employees. 


 


CCOE staff is firmly committed to delivering high quality services that meet the changing and 


challenging needs of the county's children and families. In November 2018, the Community 


Collaborative Team was formed to develop key indicators and measures for both agency and 


program levels.  Team members consisting of staff, specialists, and community partners that 


worked diligently to produce a thorough assessment for the means of deriving a strategic plan to 


guide the agency's upcoming focus and goals through quarterly collaborative working meetings.    







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


12 
 


Upon identification of current trends and community needs, staff and team members conferred and 


strategized to produce a plan for impact and agency goals in an effort to deliver positive outcomes 


in the identified areas of need. 


 


The ultimate goal of CCOE’s Community Assessment is to identify and address community trends 


while having a positive impact on the families and children who reside within the County's borders.  


CCOE met with the Community Collaborative team members over several days to review and plan 


to:   1) identify critical areas in need of change or restructuring, and 2) review the Vision and 


Mission Statements of collaborative community partners.  Goals and objectives were developed 


that determined the strategies needed to accomplish each objective, (priorities were identified to 


establish timelines and whether they were short or long - term goals) 3) determining the priority 


of these changes and 4) developing goals and objectives for the next five years.  This resulted in 


the development of CCOE’s Program Goals 2019-2024.   


 


The process involved many collaborative partners such as Community Advocates for Parents and 


Children, Colusa County Health and Human Resources, representatives from elementary schools, 


First 5 Colusa, Family Action Centers, private business owners, local law enforcement and fire 


personnel, CCOE employees, as well as other agency representatives.  The involvement of 


community partners helped to guide program operations, invest the organization’s resources, 


conduct ongoing assessment of children and community needs, and to quickly identify and where 


possible, resolve challenges.  Through this planning process, CCOE was able to identify how the 


program and community were affecting and influencing the lives of children and their families. 


 


The development and achievement of specific goals and objectives were developed around 


programmatic focus areas.    Program Management, Planning, and Oversight Systems were used 


and reviewed to determine program goals and objectives. The Head Start Management System 


Wheel represents the pieces that make up the program management system as seen below.  The 


Head Start Management System Wheel is used for planning, reviewing, and ensuring CCOE 


employees strive for high quality delivery of services that support positive child and family 


outcomes. 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


13 
 


 


 


 


The Head Start Management System Wheel 


 


 


 The Board of Supervisors is the duly elected legislative body of Colusa County. The board sets 


and adopts policies and establishes programs for the county of Colusa in the following areas:  


 Air quality  


 Areas of general governance  


 Economic development  


 Emergency services and flood management  


 Health and mental health  


 Intergovernmental relations, law, and justice  







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


14 
 


 Land use and agriculture  


 Social services, libraries, and transportation 


 


Five county board members are elected by district, are non-partisan, and serve four-year terms.  


The County Board of Education is a policy-making body for CCOE.  The Board includes persons 


elected from five trustee areas representing the whole county. Responsibilities of the County Board 


of Education include: 


 budget approval 


 policy development 


 grant approval for state & federal projects 


 inter-district attendance appeal 


 expulsion appeal 


 materials adoption 


The Board acts as the County Committee for School District Organization and is responsible for 


reviewing and recommending proposals for school district unification, boundary changes and 


transfer of territory. CCOE Board of Education meetings are held the second Wednesday of each 


month at CCOE.   The public is invited to attend, and the meeting agenda is available prior to each 


meeting. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


15 
 


 


Colusa Children’s Center Toddler Room 


Welcomes Parents! 


 


 


Service Area Data 


Colusa County was established in 1850 as one of the original 27 counties created by the first state 


legislature.  The original County borders established once encompassed all of what is now Glenn 


County.  In 1891, the counties of Glenn and Colusa were split.  Records prior to 1891 are still 


maintained in Colusa County.  Colusa County encompasses 1,150 square miles in the northern part 


of California, located approximately 70 miles north of the State's capital, Sacramento.  Part of the 


Sacramento Valley, the west side of the County is lined by a coastal range and the east side is 


bordered by the Sacramento River.  The County's location is approximately two and a half hours 


from Lake Tahoe, one hour from downtown Sacramento, three hours from the Fort 


Bragg/Mendocino coastline, and two hours from San Francisco.  The neighboring counties are 


Glenn County to the north, Lake County to the west, Butte and Sutter Counties to the east, and 


Yolo County to the south.  







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


16 
 


 


 Colusa County is home to the following towns:  Arbuckle, College City, Colusa, Grand 


Island/Grimes, Leesville, Maxwell, Princeton, Sites, Stonyford, and Williams.  Arbuckle, 


Williams and Maxwell are all located 20 minutes apart on Interstate 5, which runs north and south.  


Colusa is centrally located approximately 12 miles east of Williams on Highway 20, which runs 


east and west.   


 


Economic Activities:  Colusa County is largely rural and is well known for its farming industry 


and production of a wide variety of crops.  Much of the County's land is devoted to farming crops 


such as alfalfa, almonds, Asian pears, beans, corn, cotton, melons, onions, pistachios, prunes, 


pumpkins, rice, safflower, sunflowers, tomatoes, walnuts, wheat and wine grapes. Colusa County 


is also home to the Colusa National Wildlife Refuge, the Delevan National Wildlife Refuge and 


the Colusa-Sacramento River State Recreation Area, serving as a refuge to a variety of wildlife 


such as blue herons, cranes, deer, ducks, foxes, geese, hawks, pheasants, possums, raccoons and 


swans, just to name a few.  The majority of the County's community resources and government 


agencies are located in Colusa, which is the County seat and hold the highest population of the 


County's residents. 


 


Olam Tomato Processers was a large tomato processing plant in the center of the county that faced 


downsizing local operations and recently closed this year.  Olam hired full-time and seasonal 


workers and employed over 200 employees.  The plant does not plan to reopen and this is 


detrimental to employment and revenue in the county.   


 


The Colusa Casino Resort is owned and operated by the Cachil Dehe Band of Wintun Indians.  


Much of the revenue generated by the Colusa Casino Resort is invested back into the tribal 


community to fund health care services, educational opportunities, and the preservation of the 


tribal heritage and culture, and expansion of tribal businesses.   


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


17 
 


 


 


America’s Labor market Information System (ALMIS) Employer Database of 2020, identified the 


following chart as major employers in Colusa County:  


Table #1:  Major Employers in Colusa County 


Employer Name 
Location Industry 


ADM Milling Co  Arbuckle  Flour Mills (mfrs)  


Alsco-Geyer Irrigation Inc  Arbuckle  


Irrigation Systems & Equipment 


(whls)  


Arbuckle Elementary School  Arbuckle  Schools  


California Heritage Mills Inc  Maxwell  Rice Mills (mfrs)  


Colusa Casino Resort  Colusa  Casinos  


Colusa County Alcohol & Drug  Colusa  Government Offices-County  


Colusa County Coroner  Colusa  Government Offices-County  


Colusa County Health-Human  Colusa  Government Offices-County  


Colusa County Sheriff Dept  Colusa  Government Offices-County  


De Pue Warehouse Co  Williams  


Warehouses-Merchandise & Self 


Storage  


De Pue Warehouse Co Inc  Maxwell  Rice-Wholesale  


Enid Pride Continuation Hs  Maxwell  Schools  


George T Egling Middle School  Colusa  Schools  


Granzella's  Williams  Restaurants  


Indian Harvest Colusa  Food Products (whls)  


James Burchfield Primary Sch  Colusa  Schools  


Myers & Charter Inc  Arbuckle  Rice Mills (mfrs)  


Ottenwalter Mark  Colusa  General Farms-Primarily Crop  


Pierce Joint Unified School  Arbuckle  Schools  


Premier Mushrooms Colusa  Fruits & Vegetables-Wholesale  



https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=405976922

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=104933098

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=104933130

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=737518653

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=368303368

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=683186977

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=505564328

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=414464107

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=414464289

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=208422360

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=886704485

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=208422642

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=104966650

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=403546392

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=482996147

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=104966908

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=410013453

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=736315542

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=707416451

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=613036037





                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


18 
 


Sun VALLEY Rice Co LLC  Arbuckle  Investments  


Sunsweet Dryers  Colusa  


Fruits & Vegetables-Growers & 


Shippers  


Valley West Care Ctr  Williams  Health Services  


Williams Elementary School  Williams  Schools  


Williams Elementary School  Williams  Schools  


 


Colusa County's total population is 21,419, which accounts for approximately 0.0575% of 


California's total population of 37,253,956.  The land area of Colusa County is 1,150 square miles, 


which accounts for .738% of California's total square miles.  As is depicted above, the County's 


population is very small in comparison to California's total population and in relation to the 


county's and state's total land area.  Although Colusa County's geographical characteristics differ 


much from its neighboring counties and the rest of the counties in California, its’ governing 


structure is similar to its counterparts. 


 


  Below is a table demonstrating the rural nature in comparison with the population of the various 


small communities thriving within the County's borders: 


 


Table #2:  Population per Town with Average number per Household 


CITY/TOWN 


LAND 


AREA 


(SQ. 


MILE) 


POPULATION 


PERSON 


PER SQ. 


MILE 


# OF 


HOUSEHOLDS 


AVERAGE # 


OF PEOPLE 


PER 


HOUSEHOLD 


Arbuckle* 1.8 (CDP) 3,028 (CDP) 1,721.2 868 3.49 


College City* 
3.279 


(CDP) 
290 (CDP) 88.5 92 3.15 


 Colusa 


(County seat) 
1.83 5,971 3,255.7 2,282 2.6 


Grand 


Island/Grimes* 


391 


(CDP) 
391 172.9 130 2.7 



https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=552629966

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=301418976

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=008645384

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=105015341

https://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000011&empId=437127991





                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


19 
 


Maxwell* 
2.150 


(CDP) 
1,103 (CDP) 512.9 365 2.7 


Princeton* 
1.836 


(CDP) 
303 (CDP) 165 124 2.44 


Stonyford* 
2.897 


(CDP) 
149 51.4 69 1.7 


Williams 5.44 5,123 941 1,487 3.5 


County of 


Colusa 
1,150 21,419  18.6 7,883 2.7  


State of 


California 


155,779.2


2 
37,253,956    239.1 13,680,081 2.7 


*Designated as CDP = Census-Designated Place 


 


 While the County's population is small, it contributes largely to its farming industry, with a large 


amount of the County's land lying in the food-growing belt north of Sacramento.  There are only 


two incorporated cities in Colusa County, Colusa and Williams, and they are each similar in size.  


Colusa and Williams have a small town feel with populations of fewer than 6,000 each. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


20 
 


Learning about buildings within our community. 


 


 


Determining Community Strengths, Needs, and Resources 


 


Housing:  The demand for housing in Colusa County is extensive.  Many families struggle with 


paying high housing costs.  The average fair market rent for Colusa County residents by unit size 


according to kidsdata.org in 2016 was as follows:  Studio – zero bedrooms the average was $524, 


1 bedroom was $701, 2 bedrooms was $850, 3 bedrooms was $1,239, and 4 bedrooms was $1,358.  


The median housing value was $193,500 according to the 2013-2017 American Community 


Survey 5-Year Estimates data on the United States Census Bureau on census.gov.   Housing costs 


continue to increase.  Families within a low-income area such as Colusa County must earn an 


unrealistic amount in order to attain a modest yet adequate standard of living.  According to the 


Economic Policy Institute Family Budget Calculator, a family size of four in Colusa County needs 


a monthly gross income of $6,186 with an annual total of $74, 236.00 to be self-sufficient.  A 


family size of five needs a monthly gross income of $7,451 with an annual total of $89,408.00.  


 


The median household income was $56,481 with the largest portion of 20.8% of the households 


making between $50,000 to $74,999 in income and benefits.  The median income for families in 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


21 
 


the county was $56,481 with 4.1% making less than $10,000.  48.8% of the families with female 


householder and no husband present fell below the poverty level for the previous 12 months.  


 In 2017, it was found that 4.3% of the county residents received Supplemental Security Income, 


3.2% received cash public assistance income, and 13.2% received Food Stamp/SNAP benefits in 


the previous 12 months.  As reported by California Alternative Payment Program Association 


(CAPPA) in 2018 the Family Median Income (FMI) by county based on two adults and two 


children for Colusa County was $63,083.  The 2013-2017 American Community Survey shows 


that the median family income for California was at $82,009 in 2017.   


 


 Poverty Status:  Colusa County is identified as a high-poverty zip code area, there remains a 


significant need for EHS, HS, and State funded early education and subsidized programs.  


According to American Fact Finder (http://factfinder2.census.gov), Colusa County’s poverty level 


related to households with children 17 years of age was 20.6% below poverty level in the 2013-


2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, which is significantly above the state 


average of 14.3%.    This demonstrates the extreme poverty level of our County’s children in 


comparison to our County’s general population.  Because of the economic decline, unemployment 


rates in Colusa County have risen over the past years.  According to data reported by the California 


Employment Developmental Department, (EDD) Colusa County’s unemployment rate was 


12.10%, as of December 2018 and the State of California’s unemployment rate is 4.1%.  


 


There are 17% of Colusa County families living in poverty, which is 3% higher than California’s 


14%.  Within a rural county where there are limited resources, including very limited public 


transportation and lack of medical providers, CCOE must collaborative with local community 


businesses to help families overcome these challenges. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


22 
 


Comparison of Unemployment Rates:  As depicted in Table #4 below, Colusa County displays a 


significantly higher unemployment rate in comparison to its neighboring counties with similar 


agriculture industry and employment opportunities. 


 


Table #3: Unemployment Rates 


Comparison of Neighboring County Unemployment Rates 


(Calculated December 2018) 


County Unemployment Rate 


Colusa County 12.10% 


Glenn County 6.7% 


Sutter County 8.1% 


State of California 4.1% 


 


The current increase in unemployment rates may serve as an indicator that the poverty level of our 


County will raise unless there is a shift in recent local employment trends. 


In 2019, the unemployment rates in Colusa County were higher in the beginning of the year and 


started to drop after July. (https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/unrate)  In January 2019, the 


unemployment rates were at 19.6%, March was 20.6%, May 10.4%, July 10.2%, September 6.6%, 


and October was 7.3%     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/unrate





                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


23 
 


Table #4:  Unemployment Rates 


 


 


 California’s minimum wage is consistently increasing.  On January 2020, the minimum wage will 


increase to $12.00 dollars per hour for employers with fewer than 26 employees and $13.00 dollars 


and hour for employers with more than 26 employees.  This has caused small businesses hardship 


to maintain adequate number of employees. 


 


Employment: Although Colusa County has a high unemployment rate, Colusa County agencies 


have employment vacancies that go unfilled.   Identified open positions and staff turnover were 


identified as a significant gap consistently throughout the county.   Many organizations have job 


openings that go unfilled for months and receive limited qualified applications.  Without staff in 


positions, larger workloads are placed on employees, which contributes to staff burn out.  Colusa 


County often trains new staff and they promote to other counties.  Employee recruitment is difficult 


in a rural and isolated community.  Many employment opportunities are seasonal and agriculture 


related.  Individuals receive unemployment compensation during the off-season therefore, 


unemployment rates increase.   


 


 Families and Children Experiencing Homelessness: Colusa County homelessness population has 


increased.  Multiple families reside in homes, garages, or sheds together due to lack of affordable 


housing.  This places stressors on families. Farm labor workers who do not qualify for Farm Labor 


Housing, live in garages and sheds on farms or small hotels. CCOE provides school stability and 


0.00%


5.00%


10.00%


15.00%


20.00%


25.00%


January March May July September October


Unemployment Rates in Colusa 
County (2019)


Series 1







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


24 
 


ensures that young children and youth identified under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance 


Act have access to the same opportunities, experiences, and resources as non-homeless youth.  The 


demographics of the homeless population is increasing.  Currently, there are 266 children ages 0-


18 years identified as homeless in Colusa County.  In EHS, 13% of eligible families and 2% of HS 


eligible families are considered homeless. It is difficult to determine the exact reasons, although it 


is believed to be the increase in domestic violence and drug addiction.  Families are provided with 


referrals to healthcare, dental, and mental health. 


 


Children in Foster Care:  There are approximately 80 children in foster care in Colusa County.  


Many children are in relative placement.  Children will a referral from Child Protective Services 


receive priority for early care and educational program placement.  CCOE Resource and Referral 


program navigates needed emergency childcare options and education for Foster families to ensure 


consistent and nurturing placement is provided and ongoing. 


 


Children with Disabilities:  CCOE understands the importance and benefits of full-inclusion.  


CCOE has established all program models as full-inclusive classrooms while working in 


partnership with Colusa County Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) agency and Alta 


California Regional Center (ACRC).  Collaboration services include establishing support needed 


for each child and a potential Para Educator from Special Education to provide support in each 


classroom.   There is an increase in children with unique needs for special services and this year 


Special Education has provided additional support time for a Special Education Teacher in specific 


classrooms.   Based on data provided by the  SELPA Team  and the ACRC agency, there are 


currently forty-one children with either an Individualized Learning Plan (IEP) or an Individualized 


Family Service Plan (IFSP) and an additional thirty-seven children who are pending referrals for 


services.  As numbers for children with autism increases, CCOE will work with the SELPA team 


to plan for additional classroom support and training.  CCOE Children’s Services employs a 


Special Needs Coordinator that coordinates services for special needs; assesses curricular 


resources to assure program effectiveness for children and families; supports, counsels, and assists 


personnel and parents in program development and educational methods and approaches; and 


provides technical assistance, training, guidance, and consultation to the programs.  The Special 


Needs Coordinator carries out the goals, policies, and activities designed to implement the needs 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


25 
 


of children with disabilities and their families in accordance with the Head Start Performance 


Standards.  CCOE will continue to collaborate with SELPA during monthly meetings in planning 


for the next program year to best meet the needs of the children.   


 


The following chart reflects identified disabilities and ages of children among CCOE programs 


ages 0-5 years of age. 


 


Table #5:  Identified Disabilities 


 


Autism diagnosis continues to be on the rise as shown in the chart above.  Nationally, 1 in 59 


children receive a diagnosis of autism Spectrum Disorder by the time they are eight years old, 


which is a 15% increase since 2014 (Autismspeaks.org).  CCOE strives for early detection and 


utilizes developmental screenings to support early intervention strategies. Speech and language is 


the second highest identified disability among children ages 0-5 within our programs. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


26 
 


 


 In Map #1 below, the geographical layout of Colusa County and CCOE’s calculated presence 


throughout the County is apparent and allows easy access for educational opportunities suitable to 


the County’s defined needs.   


 


Map #1:  Geographical Layout of Colusa County


 


The Hispanic/Latino ethnicity has been growing steadily throughout the United States.  Out of 


the total population, 11,804 of the County's residents identify to be of Hispanic or Latino origin 


and 9,615 claim to be Non- Hispanic or Latino.  This accounts for 55.1100% of the County's 


percentage of Hispanic children in the public school system in Colusa County. When we 


compare the child population by race shown below (kidsdata.org) we can see that 74.4% of 


children are Hispanic, 22.2% are Caucasian, 1.2% are American Indian, 1.1% have mixed 


ethnicities and only 0.5% are Asian and African American. 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


27 
 


Table #6:  Child Population by Race 


 


 


 Language Spoken:  Predominant languages in Colusa County are Spanish and English, with the 


majority of parents being English Language Learners.  Eighty percent of the children in Head Start 


in Colusa County are Spanish speakers, twenty percent are English speakers.  The ethnic and 


language make-up of CCOE employees is reflective of the families currently served with 


approximately 56% of the staff being bilingual in the County’s predominant languages and familiar 


with the ethnic backgrounds of the enrolled families.  CCOE employees 48 staff who are bilingual 


in Spanish and English, one bilingual in Punjabi and English, and one staff member bilingual in 


Hindi and English. According to kidsdata.org, we can see the contrast in languages spoken among 


children.  


 


Table #7:  Language Spoken 


 


 


0.00%
10.00%
20.00%
30.00%
40.00%
50.00%
60.00%
70.00%
80.00%


Asain/African
American


Multi-Racial American Indian Caucasion Hispanic


Child Population by Race


Series 1


0%


20%


40%


60%


80%


100%


Spanish English


Languages Spoken Among Children


Series 1







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


28 
 


Gender & Ages:  According to the United States 2010 Census, 48.6% of the 21,419 Colusa County 


population are female and 51.4% are male. 29% of Colusa County residents are under the age of 


18 with 8.6% under the age of five.  Persons 65 years and over account for 11.6% of the population.  


According to factfinder.census.gov, the median age of the county is 33.5.  In the CCOE Head Start 


Program there are 54 females and 58 males.  In Early Head Start there are 42 females and 38 males 


enrolled.    In the Head Start Program there are 21 three-year-olds, 91 four-year-olds, and zero five 


year olds enrolled.  In the EHS Program there are 8 children under the age of one year of age, 26 


that are a year old, 46 two-year-olds.   


 


Households and Families Composition: The average household size for Colusa County is three 


and average family size is 3.5 according to the United States 2010 Census.  Of family households, 


10.7 are under six years old.  Households with both husband and wife living with at least one child, 


9.7% of the children are under six years old.  Female only households with no husband present 


have 13.5% of the children under six years old and contain 14.7% of the children 17 and under.  


 


Identified Needs 


Educational Needs:  The most critical and rapid phase of a child’s development occurs within the 


child’s first five years of life.  Under-resourced schools in poverty level communities, struggle to 


meet the learning needs of all children.  Building the academic achievement gap is critical for low-


income children.  According to kidsdata.org, in 2016 Colusa County was well behind the CA 


proficiency rate.  In Colusa County, only 30% of the third grade students scored proficient or 


higher on the English Language Arts CST as opposed to 42% in the state of CA. In Colusa County, 


only 26% of its students were proficient or higher on the Algebra I CST as opposed to the state 


proficiency rate of 37%.   


 


Early Head Start and Head Start programs are critical in Colusa County.  CCOE will seek funding 


sources to increase Early Head Start services.  Since 2015, Transitional Kindergarten operated by 


local school districts has served a higher population of four-year-old children.  Although 


Transitional Kindergarten is considered a full school day, hours do not meet the need for working 


families. There is also a decrease in in-home family childcare providers throughout the county that 


has decreased full day in home childcare slots.  In home childcare has decreased as providers are 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


29 
 


closing their business and returning to the work force after they have raised their own children and 


providers are getting older and retiring with a lack of new providers in the area that are unable to 


meet the increased demand for full-day services.  High quality programs for children ages 0-3 


years is greatly needed at no cost for families that are considered low income and most vulnerable 


in this area.  CCOE maintains a wait list and will expand services upon additional funding to meet 


the limited needs of this community. 


 


In 2015, 6.3% of Colusa County students had not completed high school as compared to the state 


rate of 10.7%.  CCOE offers several Adult Education opportunities. One of the courses offered is 


an English for Second Language (ESL) and Citizenship course.  This class has been very popular 


and has historically had high enrollment and attendance rates. CCOE Adult Education also offers 


classes in Medical Terminology/Medical Billing & Coding.  Upon completion of these courses, 


the student is qualified for entry-level positions such as patient information clerk, admitting clerk, 


insurance verification representative, medical biller and coder, and medical secretary/ receptionist.  


The Beginning & Advanced Accounting course and QuickBooks 2013 will give the student the 


capabilities to be employable in entry-level accounting positions such as Accounts Payroll Clerk, 


Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable Clerk, Banking Clerk, and Computer Accounting Clerk.  


Microsoft Word 2013, Microsoft Excel 2013, Microsoft PowerPoint 2013, and Keyboarding are 


also offered for students to learn the skill sets necessary to gain proficiency in one or more of the 


office applications.  A new offering for CCOE is a Basic Wildland Firefighter Academy course.  


Successful completion of this course prepares participants for Fire Service Employment 


Opportunities.  Colusa One Stop is supportive of the CCOE Adult Education courses and works 


collaboratively with CCOE under a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 


 


Incidence of Child Abuse and Neglect:  Child abuse and neglect continues to be a local and 


statewide concern.  According to kidsdata.org, the child abuse and neglect reports increased in 


Colusa County from 43 in 2013 to 88 in 2015.   General neglect was the highest reported type of 


abuse with 50.8% in 2015 and physical abuse second highest with 24.2%.  Domestic Violence 


calls for assistance were 7.0 per 1,000 in 2014. During the COVID-19 Pandemic, Domestic 


Violence has risen due to the shelter-in-place order, economic situations, and various stressors.  







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


30 
 


While we do not know the significant impact of this increase, we must prepare to support families 


and children within the near future. 


 The infant and child mortality rate is low in Colusa County with only one death in 2015 to 


unintentional injuries. Preterm births were reported to be at 11.6% in 2012 but decreased to 7.4% 


in 2013.  Infants born at low birthweight were fewer than twenty according to the California 


Department of Public Health records as reported by kidsdata.org.  Teen births were fewer than 


twenty in 2013.  Infants whose mothers received prenatal care in the first trimester was at 71.9% 


in 2013.   


Based on data from “County Health Rankings & Roadmaps” 2015 for Colusa County: 


 Teen births for Colusa County in 2015 was 44, California average was 32 teen births. 


 Low birth weight in Colusa County was 6.0%, with California average at 7.0% 


 Air pollution – particulate matter was 7.6, with California average at 9.3% 


 Drinking water violations in Colusa County was 2%, with California being 3% 


 According to “Shots for Schools” for year, 2015-16, all kindergarten children in Colusa 


County are 100% up to date on immunization with the exception of Arbuckle, which is at 


99% up to date. 


 


Preventative Health Care and Immunizations:   A new law SB 792 mandates that employees and 


volunteers in early care licensed facilities that come in direct contact with children must have 


influenza, pertussis, and measles vaccines and valid vaccination records.   Child Health and 


Disability Prevention (CHDP) provides physicals, immunizations and other health and dental 


services for children up through completion of high school.  Income guidelines exist to determine 


eligibility for CHDP services.  A total of 2,821 children or 66% of all school-age children were 


served by CHDP during the period of July 1997 – June 1998.  During fiscal year 1998/1999, 18.2% 


or 3,382 people of the county’s population were eligible for Medi-Cal.  Of these, an average of 


1,800 people or 53% of the eligible population were enrolled in Medi-Cal.  


 


Changes also to Personal Beliefs Exemption SB 277, banned families from not vaccinating their 


children due to personal beliefs will show an increase in vaccinations for children.  This stemmed 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


31 
 


from a major measles outbreak at Disneyland California in 2019, according to California 


Department of Public Health.  California’s kindergarten rate for vaccinations had a significant 


increase from 92.9% to 95.1% CCOE follows the recommendation for preventative health through 


Bright Futures by the American Academy of Pediatrics.  Follow up from prenatal through the first 


five years provides prevention and ensures early detection and diagnosis. 


 


Colusa County has limited family health services, which forces families to seek health services in 


nearby larger communities such as Woodland, Yuba City, and Chico.  The Colusa Regional 


Medical Center filed for bankruptcy in 2016 and closed along with three health clinics.   Since 


then it has reopened in 2018, but with limited services.  The Colusa hospital does not have an 


obstetrics and gynecology department and women must travel more than 30 miles to another 


hospital.  Fewer health clinics makes it difficult to meet the medical needs of families.    


Maternal home visiting program. The percentage of preschool dental screenings conducted in 


CCOE programs is displayed below: 


 


Dental screening 


7


Arbuckle Colusa Williams


95% 96% 88%


Screenings Immediate   
Referrals 


224 6


First 90 days of enrollment 


   







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


32 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Children referrals for further vision screening had increased eighteen percent from last program 


year, and eight children have received glasses so far during this program year.  Early intervention 


is key. 


 


Nutritional Needs:  Based on 2018-19 school year, CCOE data indicated that our of 62 Early Head 


Start eligible children, 52 (84%)   are receiving WIC services and 14 (23%) are receiving CalFresh 


or Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) services.  Out of 106 Head Start eligible 


children, 56 (53%) are receiving WIC services and 18 (3%) are receiving SNAP services.  The 


SNAP program assists families from low-income households with supplemental funds so they may 


purchase healthy foods required to maintain healthy through food consumption.  According to 


Colusa County Women, Infant, and Children (WIC) agency, they are currently providing services 


for 1,265 Colusa County residents, which accounts for 5.9% of the County's total population.  The 


local SNAP agency currently serves 580 active participants and has 97 pending applications, but 


reports to service an average of 650 - 700 residents on a normal basis, thus accounting for 


approximately 3.2681% of the County's population.  


 


Food Access and Obesity: Food insecurity continues to identify that the number of Colusa County 


children living in food insecure households continues to increase.  The number of children in 


Colusa County living in food insecure households is 29% in comparison to California’s 20.7%.  


(Kidsdata.org) According to kidsdata.org in 2015, there were 70.5% of Colusa County students 


eligible for Free/Reduced Price School Meals as compared to California’s 58.6% eligibility.    


CalFresh, SNAP, local food distributions, and WIC continue to provide ongoing support for low-


income families.  Colusa County Food Basket Association and food from the local food 


Vision screenings in young children allows early detection and 


opportunities for correction.  Data for 2019-2020: 


Vision Referrals:  17 


Children who received glasses:  eight 


Vision Referrals increased 18% from last program year. 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


33 
 


distributions centers provide staples for families in need.    In the last year, 425 food baskets based 


on eligibility were distributed throughout Colusa County during the month of November.  


  


Grandparents Raising Children:  There is an increase of grandparents who are responsible for 


raising their grandchildren in our community and who have obtained custody.  (Kids-alliance.org) 


there are more than 300,000 grandparents in California raising their grandchildren.  For the state 


of California, 281,067 grandparents are responsible for their grandchildren living with them.  Of 


these: 


 31% of the grandparents are White not Hispanic, 10% are Black/African American, 


9% are Asian, 2% are American Indian and Alaskan Native, and 47% are 


Hispanic/Latino, and may be of any race. 


 27% have no parents of the children present in the home. 


 63% are under age 60. 


 15% live in poverty. 


 


Drug and Alcohol Abuse:  Crime in Colusa County continues to increase.    Sheriff’s Department 


Task Force has identified an increase in gang and drug activity in drugs such as heroin, marijuana, 


and prescription drugs.  Children face an increase to more exposure to drugs.  In 2015, there were 


182 arrests for Driving Under the Influence (177 misdemeanor and 5 felony arrests).  Driving 


Under the Influence arrests per 100 licensed drivers in Colusa County was 1.2; one of the highest 


in California of all counties (highest was Alpine at 1.8, followed by Trinity at 1.5). 


 


Mental Health Services: Colusa County Behavioral Health Services provide crisis intervention and 


counseling services to county residents.  CCOE maintains an MOU with this department to provide 


mental health observations and recommendations for preventative care for Early Head Start and 


Head Start programs through their clinical children’s services licensed director. Limited mental 


health services have been available for adults and children and now services are increasing due to 


identified need.  CCOE has observed an increase in children who require additional support with 


behavior and/or mental health issues within our 0-5 population and in parents.  CCOE utilizes the 


Teaching Pyramid Social-Emotional Framework to promote the social-emotional a competence in 


our 0-5 age programs.  CCOE has employees training in Trauma Informed Care practices to 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


34 
 


promote early prevention practices and skills.  The Safe Haven Wellness and Recovery Center is 


a peer supported drop-in center that serves adults who are in recovery from substance abuse, 


dealing with mental health issues, and or avoiding isolation.  Behavioral Health staff provide focus 


groups and resources to individuals within the community towards improving parenting skills.  


CCOE Resource and Referral received funding to provide parent café style parenting classes to 


promote the research based Strengthening Families Protective Factor Framework that includes, 


parental resilience, social connections, knowledge of parenting and child development, concrete 


support in times of need, and social and emotional competence of children.  Staff prepared and 


planned each Parent Café that included dinner, social interactions, incentives, and reached 


maximum capacity at each training.   


 


Transportation:  Colusa residents find transportation around the County difficult and it is limited 


to only personal vehicles and a single Transit System. Reliable transportation is an ongoing 


concern.   Colusa County has a “dial-a-ride” transit system that provides limited transportation to 


families throughout the county that include Colusa, Williams, and Arbuckle.  There are no taxis 


or Uber ride systems in place in Colusa County. A lack of transportation throughout the county, 


limits healthcare services particularly access to prenatal care, and access to childcare, learning 


centers, schools, and services.   The most rural areas such as Maxwell and Grimes that do not have 


a significant enough population to support an early care and educational facility are greatly 


affected.  Many families who reside in the rural parts of the county face the largest barrier.  This 


proposes a barrier for many residents who seek or obtain employment or pursue educational 


opportunities where those opportunities are more available.    


 


COVID-19 Pandemic:  The COVID-19 Pandemic health crisis has significantly affected our 


nation, community, and early learning programs.  CCOE is following the Shelter in Place order 


put forth by California’s Governor and were directed to close all early learning centers and 


classrooms. Colusa County Public Health issued an order that directs all individuals living within 


the County to remain at their place of residence and orders all businesses and governmental 


operations to cease non-essential operations at physical locations through May 8, 2020.    


Employees deemed as essential personnel continue to work to ensure identified tasks are complete 


to continue programmatic operational duties.   Education staff continue to maintain supportive 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


35 
 


relationships with children and families.  Teaching staff are doing their best to provide direct 


learning activities for families and children.  All CCOE employees identified as essential are 


working remotely, rotating office schedules, and are assisting families deemed as essential workers 


with emergency childcare needs.  CCOE staff provide activities for distance learning through 


Footsteps2Brilliance where children and families have access to thousands of books and games 


that develop reading skills as well as educational packets and books provided by teachers.  


Learning Genie Family Engagement program is essential for providing parenting ideas and 


maintaining the upmost communication between our programs and parents.  CCOE continues to 


provide breakfast and lunch for children through “drive through” style meal pick up service to 


ensure children receive appropriate and healthy meals.  A huge benefit of our small community is 


collaboration and support is not over looked in time of need.  The McKinney Homeless Assistance 


Program Assistant has provided backpacks with learning materials included to children during the 


drive thru lunch pick up line and the staff from the And Literacy for All and county libraries 


provided children in Head Start with additional books and learning activities.  Next week 


NAPSACC, a team of researchers and public health professionals that support healthy 


development in early education will provide children and families with small plants to explore 


growing a garden and to promote healthy eating and physical activity habits.  


 


Many small family owned businesses and restaurants are suffering from the immediate closure.  


One small local restaurant across from our main business office closed their doors indefinitely.  


Much of the Colusa County community is extremely impacted. The Colusa County Fair will not 


open this year along with the county fair parade, which is one of the largest community events in 


Colusa.  This contagious disease has complicated planning for next program year.  Staff are not 


able to conduct regular recruitment activities and do not have a clear date when employees will be 


able to return to work.   Nor do we know the longitudinal effects this will have on our community 


and residents within the county.  With the impact from the COVID-19, CCOE will look at the 


Administration for Children and Families and Office of Head Start for guidance, further funding, 


and operational leadership as we support families through these unique circumstances. 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


36 
 


Community Strengths and Resources 


Colusa County is a small community with strong systems that allows agencies to work 


collaboratively with other essential agencies to best utilize resources and support for our families.  


Collaboration with other community agencies is necessary.  Some of CCOE’s  collaborative 


partners include:  Women, Infant and Children (WIC),  First 5 Colusa, Colusa County Department 


of Behavioral Health (CCDBH), Colusa County Department of Health and Human 


Services/Welfare Department (CCDHHS), The One Stop Agency, Center for Nutrition and 


Activity Promotion (CNAP), Colusa County Grown Food Council, Colusa County Special 


Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), local law enforcement and district fire personnel, school 


districts, Alta California Regional Center (ACRC), Colusa Child Protective Services (CPS), 


Community Advocates for Parents & Children, the designated Child Abuse Prevention Council, 


and Family SOUP, (a resource center for families whose children have a special need).    


 


One good example of collaboration is CCOE’s annual Family Fair.  The Family Fair is a large 


event that is sponsored by CCOE and Local Childcare Planning Council.  Many community 


agencies gather at this event to provide fun and engaging activities for families at no cost.  


Community businesses donate and volunteer. Family Fair activities include a petting zoo complete 


with a multitude of farm animals, a 5k Color Run, a Master Gardener’s planting project, many art 


and sensory activities, face painting, a tour of local fire department and law enforcement first 


respondent vehicles, local libraries provide free books, and an abundant of activities that bring 


families together within the community.  Unfortunately, the Family Fair was postponed due to 


COVID-19.  The beauty of a small community is that agencies collaborate and join resources, 


especially during critical times.  Other events that have been cancelled this year is the Community 


Baby Shower, community trainings on Trauma Informed Care, the Literacy Luau, a mathematics 


focused Family Activity Night, Parent Cafes, Open Houses for parents, recruitment events, and 


many other events that this community looks forward to. 


 


Multiple inter-agency agreements with school districts and other agencies promote a positive 


transition and program recruitment.  CCOE employees participate in multi-agency advisory 


committees including Colusa County Partners for Health, SELPA, and social services meetings. 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


37 
 


In comparison to neighboring counties, community resource agencies available to the County's 


residents do not fully meet their needs due to the extreme rural nature of the County.  


 


CCOE Resource & Referral Department works with the County Child Welfare Agency to assist 


with the Emergency Bridge Program for Foster Children and navigates needed emergency 


childcare options and education for Foster families.  CCOE amongst many other community 


agencies participates in the Angel Tree project that supports children in Foster Care within the 


county.  Items in need for children in Foster Care are identified and employees gather items and 


assist with delivery of those items.  Community agencies support an annual Community Baby 


Shower that provides maternal resources for new expecting families.  CCOE Home Based 


Educators are actively involved in this event and provide pre and post-natal resources that are 


shared with new mothers.   


 


CCOE has increased community collaboration and attendance at local events for outreach and 


recruitment of qualified employees and to reach new families.  Setting up informational booths at 


High School Career Fairs and local Community Colleges has increased our outreach within the 


community.  Efforts made towards recruitment and retainment of qualified employees has made a 


positive difference.  CCOE started out the program year with nine vacant positions and in February 


2020, all vacant positions were filled.  CCOE has not seen all vacant positions filled without any 


vacancies in over five years and is proud of their continuous efforts. 


 


CCOE has developed strategic program goals, measurable objectives and timelines over the five-


year grant cycle that drives the workforce towards improved quality of services.  CCOE intends to 


accomplish program goals that are specific and responsive to the needs of the community we serve.  


Program goals identify specific strategies in the areas of education, health and safety, nutrition, 


and family engagement that promote school readiness and positive child and family outcomes.   


An established systemic approach includes an ongoing monitoring system that follows the outline 


of the Head Start Program Performance Standards (HSPPS).  The HSPPS is a guide that promotes 


Grantees to follow best practices in the area of early childhood development.  This guide provides 


a guideline for monitoring and capturing data towards increased progress within all program areas 


designed by the Office of Head Start.  CCOE’s strive for high quality has put forth strong systems 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


38 
 


that supports the HSPPS and ensures effective quality assurance and active safety and supervision 


of all children at all times and is a high priority.  The Leadership Team, staff, Policy Council 


Representatives and stakeholders from the community, warrant highly effective ongoing 


monitoring and compliance.   The Executive Team consists of the Executive Director, 


Administrative Program Specialist, Division Director for Education, Division Director for Support 


Services and Program Accounting Specialist work closely to monitor progress, collect and review 


data and develop program goals that are deliberate, long term, and measurable.  The CCOE 


Leadership consisting of directors, managers, and specialists, meet on a monthly basis to ensure 


effective monitoring and compliance with strong fiscal, human resources, and overall 


programmatic organization is regularly monitored and operates efficiently. 


 


CCOE infant, toddler, and preschool sites voluntarily participate in coordinated services in Keys 


to Quality, a regional Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) towards ongoing site 


quality improvement.  A QRIS is a comprehensive system of supporting quality of early care and 


education funded by the California Department of Education, Early Education Support Division 


with Federal Quality Improvement Funds, First 5 California, Sutter County Children & Families 


Commission, First 5 Yuba and First 5 Colusa.  CCOE is committed to ongoing monitoring that 


guides continued improvement and increased quality. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


39 
 


Mrs. Denise Carter, elected County Board of Supervisors, reads “If You Give a Mouse a 


Cookie” to a preschool classroom at the Williams Children’s Center. 


 


 


“And Literacy for All”.  CCOE has created a countywide literacy project “And Literacy for All” 


initiative to promote bilingual reading and writing skills to all Colusa County residents utilizing 


mobile technology.  The primary goal behind the initiative is to have all children reading at or 


above grade level by the end of 3rd grade.  An Innovative Approaches to Literacy grant of $2.25 


million over a three-year period by the U.S. Department of Education was awarded in 2019.  


Through this grant, CCOE’s entire literacy outreach to Colusa County students, ages 2-7 years old 


has been boosted to a level far beyond its 5-year plan.  CCOE and its 13 preschools will collaborate 


with three k-3 schools, and 6 local libraries to provide early learners with access to cutting-edge 


print and digital literacy programming, e-books, and interactive activities.  This project will 


provide greater access to educational programs in our rural schools and expand professional 


development opportunities for early childhood educators by utilizing technology, specifically 


Footsteps2Brilliance and distance learning programs.  This initiative was created as a countywide 


literacy project to promote bilingual reading and writing skills to all Colusa County residents using 


mobile technology such as the Footsteps2Brilliance mobile literacy application.   







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


40 
 


 


Family receiving a book on “Whose Shoes” from a Family Literacy Night Activity. 


 


 


In addition, CCOE has created Literacy Kits and have placed them in local businesses and 


waiting areas throughout the community to promote a love for learning literacy. 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


41 
 


Preschool Children from the Arbuckle Early Care and Education Center draw Lucy the Ladybug 


on their iPads in the classroom.


 


 


Other Early Care and Education Services:  There are nearly 1,874 children between the ages of 0-


5 years of age who reside in Colusa County (Kidsdata.org).  Of this population, 27% of children 


ages 0-5 years at or below poverty level.  The State of California continues to utilize the State 


Income Guidelines for enrollment that does not currently match with the increased California 


Minimum Wage guidelines.  The Federal Income Guidelines are half of the guidelines set for State 


early care and educational programs.  CCOE coordinates with other early childhood and education 


programs and provides professional development and collaboration. 


 


CCOE operates all subsidized program options including Head Start center based, Early Head Start 


center and home based, and State funded programs that serve young children ages 0-5 years and 


adheres to State and Federal regulations that promote the highest quality programs.   Additional 


early care and educational programs offered in the county in which we collaborate includes: 


 First 5 Colusa 


 Transitional Kindergarten for children who meet age criteria 







                 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2019-2024 


 


42 
 


 Two private centers in Colusa with part day or full day options:  One Faith-based preschool, 


and one Tribal Community Toddler/Preschool Center both operate full day 


 Family Action Centers in Arbuckle and Williams 


 Family Resource Center in Colusa 


 One private part day preschool in Williams 


 Family Childcare homes 


 Friends and family care 


 


Affordable early care and educational programs and childcare available to families could address 


a barrier for employment.  CCOE subsidized programs have a referral system for licensed daycare 


homes, licensed exempt daycare homes, licensed centers including Early Head Start, Head Start 


and State Preschool and licensed exempt centers through the Resource and Referral Program.   


For families to receive subsidized childcare, parents must be either employed, or participating in 


a training or educational program.  State subsidy includes the California Work Opportunity and 


Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs) and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF).   


 


The Resource and Referral program through CCOE provides ongoing training and professional 


development to 46 licensed daycare providers.  CCOE is grateful for these in home childcare 


providers as many providers are caring for essential working families during the emergency crisis 


brought on by COVID-19 and are following directives given by the State of California.   


 


All CCOE classrooms and programs are all inclusive to meet the individual needs of all children.  


CCOE believes that all children with special needs will learn with their typically developing peers 


within the least restrictive environment.   


 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


CCOE – Children’s Services Five Year Program Goals 2019-2024 


Five Years Objective:  Colusa County Office of Education – Children’s Services will establish, measure, and work towards program goals, monitor program 


performance for continuous improvement, and increase overall quality through a collaborative planning process. 


Program Goal #1:  To Promote Staff Retention, Recruitment and Individual Professional Development  


 


Objectives 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


To employ and obtain 


qualified staff who meet the 


state and federal 


educational requirements in 


a high unemployment area 


that positively impact school 


readiness factors for all 


children. 


Fully staffed with 


qualified employees in 


February of 2020.  


 


Implemented detailed 


onboarding process for 


all newly hired 


employees.     


 


All employees will have 


increased knowledge 


about the program.  


 


Increase quality of 


educational programs. 


 


Increase staff morale 


Vacant position data 


identified a 12% 


decrease in staff 


turnover from July 


2019 to July 2020. 


 


Implemented plan to 


collect data to identify 


greatest target areas to 


reach new employees.  


Collected data 


identified: 


Edjoin:  54% 


Word of Mouth:  25% 


One Stop:  9% 


Indeed:  8% 


Social Media:  4% 


 


Improved Onboarding 


System to include 


additional steps to 


provide more support 


to new staff and peer 


support for new staff. 


 


Revised Orientation 


Checklist. 


 Maintained 78% of 


employees since June 


2019 to present. 


 


 


Incorporated two-


month check-in staff 


survey for newly 


hired employees. 


 


 


Held a Career Fair in 


January 2022 that 


was not well 


attended. 


 


Two staff are trained 


to teach Trauma 


Informed Care 


trainings and trained 


teaching staff and in-


home childcare 


providers in the 


community. 


 


Classroom volunteers 


through Foster 


15 positions remain 


vacant to date. 


 


Implemented on-the-


spot hiring events 


through our CCOE 


Human Resources 


Department.  


 


Offered to change all 


EHS/HS positions to 


full-time Equivalent.  


 


Offer interviews in 


each candidate’s 


choice of language. 


 


Continue utilizing 


social media 


platforms for 


recruitment of 


employees for all 


positions. 


 


Provided one-time 3% 


off-the-salary 


 


Recruit and maintain qualified 


staff.  Continue to recruit at 


target areas, and develop and 


analyze a tracking system that 


identifies successful 


recruitment and retainment 


methods. 


 


Develop Succession and 


Onboarding Plans for all 


positions. 


 
Develop and implement a 


Coaching Plan. 


 
Implement activities for staff 


wellness, motivation, and 


trauma informed care practices. 


Item # 7.5







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #1:  To Promote Staff Retention, Recruitment and Individual Professional Development  


 


Objectives 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


  


Created a Coaching 


Plan and created 3 


Quality Improvement 


Coach positions. 


  Begin implementation 


January 2021.  


Coaches will utilize 


collected data to 


measure progress. 


 


Classroom staff will be 


trained on Trauma 


Informed Practices and 


demonstrate nurturing 


and supportive 


environments for 


families, children, and 


staff. 


Grandparent Program 


support staff 


retention and 


burnout.  


 


Proposed 5% salary 


increase.  


Continue ongoing 


strengthening of 


coaching plan and 


coaching staff 


Improved coaching 


strategies. 


 


Keys to Quality 


(QRIS) professional 


development 


supports individual 


professional 


development 


trainings including 


Teaching Pyramid 


community of 


practice. 


 


Participated in (12) 


Social-Emotional 


Learning Community 


of Practice 


professional 


development 


trainings.  Increased 


schedule stipend for 


all employees. 


  


Continued coaching 


has strengthened 


coaching practices, 


monthly coaching and 


community of 


practice.   


 


Engage in on-going 


coaching training by 


Office of Head Start 


and QRIS support.  


 


Increased 


opportunities to 


acknowledge and 


motivate employees 


through nomination of 


Trimester awards for 


Teacher of the 


Trimester and 


Classified and 


Certificated Employee 


of the Trimester were 


implemented along 


with an annual awards 


dinner. 


 


UPK Mixed Delivery 


Grant and Northern 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #1:  To Promote Staff Retention, Recruitment and Individual Professional Development  


 


Objectives 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


staff and self-


wellness activities.    


Created a Wellness 


Newsletter that 


includes resources 


for employees. 


 


Created a Wellness 


Newsletter that 


includes resources 


for employees 


California Early 


Education Teacher 


Development Grant 


opportunities are 


offered to employees 


and community to 


support attainment of 


ECE courses and 


teaching credential. 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #1:  To Promote Staff Retention, Recruitment and Individual Professional Development  


 


Objectives 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Activities or Actions Steps to Meet Objective Above:   


 


Year #2: 


• Establish agency-wide professional development training system that includes content area and R&R required trainings. 


• Onboarding System:   Orientation Checklists for all positions. 


• Plan additional focus on Trauma Informed Practices, supportive and compassionate practices. 


 


Year #3: 


• Further develop Orientation Checklists for all positions. 


• Continue to seek strategies to increase availability for consistent substitutes and employees. 


• Seek funding to provide employment incentives and lower staff to child ratios. 


• CalHope secured funds supported health and wellness activities for staff to reduce burn-out and increase teacher effectiveness. 


• Quality Counts California funds were used to support quality teaching and learning activities, outdoor playgrounds, and improve classroom 


environments. 


• Utilize SPARKS materials for promotional advertisements on social media platforms. 


• Self-wellness activities for employees will continue to be a priority. 


• Attending Career Fairs at local high schools.   


• Provide presentations for community colleges and partner departments. 


• Two full-day In-Service Days supported staff wellness and employee appreciation activities. 


 


Year #4:   


• Attend CCOE scheduled quarterly hiring events throughout the communities; continue attending Career Fairs at local high schools and junior colleges 


order to increase outreach and recruitment of substitutes and employees 


• Create videos and utilize social media for recruitment of employees for all positions. 


• Self-wellness activities for employees will continue to be a priority. 


• Continue to offer two In-Service Days to support staff wellness and employee appreciation activities. 


• Monthly Coaching Community of Practice for coaching team. 


• Monthly coaching network trainings from Office of Head Start that all coach team attends. 


• Grant opportunities support development of qualified employees. 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #2:  Strengthen our Program Infrastructure    


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


To improve the overall 


system and efficiency of the 


department due to 


increasing costs. 


Consolidate departmental 


organization to maximize 


effectiveness.  


 


Budget to include 


compliance with 


California State 


Minimum Wage 


increases. 


 


Attempt consistent parity 


throughout salary 


schedules due to 


minimum wage 


increases.  


 


Capitalized funding 


allowance. Utilized QRIS 


and other sources for 


positions. 


 


Reduce operating 


expenditures. 


 


Quality facilities, and to 


increase duration. 


Identify and strengthen 


data approach in all 


content areas.    


 


Improve efficiency of 


utilized software and 


eliminate manual 


entry.  Utilize 


touchscreen attendance 


and electronic 


enrollment 


applications. 


 


Improve Ongoing 


Monitoring System and 


Data Checklist to 


ensure monitoring and 


compliance. 


 


Utilize and identify 


reports in ChildPlus for 


all content areas and 


report to monthly 


Leadership. 


 


 Wage comparison 


survey completed.   


 


80% of EHS teachers 


hold an Associate’s 


Wage comparison 


survey completed.  


Degree and 67% of 


preschool teachers 


hold a Bachelor’s 


Degree. 


 


Alleviated Assistant 


Teacher position, 


increase Associate 


Teacher positions to 


improve program 


quality.  Associate 


Teachers received 


professional 


development 


opportunities.  


 


Reclassify identified 


positions and title 


changes to reflect 


current duties and 


align with Student 


Support Services in 


CCOE. 


Blended State/Federal 


funding to create full-


day programs, 


eliminated three part-


day classrooms. 


 


Awarded CCTR State 


funding to expand 


services to infants and 


toddlers.  Utilize 


vacant preschool 


classroom to expand 


services. 


 


County wide planning 


and capacity building 


with local school 


districts to support 


UPK continuum for 


preschool-third grade 


alignment.  Partnering 


with Maxwell Unified 


School District to 


meet needs of our 


most rural 


community.   


 


Reclassified positions 


to align with Student 


 


Consolidate departmental 


organization, as opportunities 


arise. 


 


Budget and implement 


minimum wage increases. 


 


Implement an increase to align 


with comparable wages in our 


surrounding areas, as funding is 


available.   


 


Reclassify and consolidate 


positions as needed due to 


minimum wage increase. 


 


Explore cost-effective contract 


services. 


 


Explore additional funding to 


replace and obtain needed 


facilities. 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #2:  Strengthen our Program Infrastructure    


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


 


Applied for funding 


through CDE to 


expand CCTR/CSPP 


blended services. 


 


Improve safety 


protocols and assess 


classroom sites 


located in rural areas. 


 


External Fiscal audits 


proved strong 


financial and 


administrative 


practices are 


complaint. 


 


Strengthened system 


for collecting and 


analyzing overall 


data and approach. 


 


Operational costs 


continue to increase 


and pose great 


challenge and 


concern. 


 


 


Support Services 


within CCOE. 


 


Offered all EHS/HS 


positions change to 


full-time Equivalent. 


 


One-time 3% off-the-


salary schedule 


stipend provided to all 


employees. 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #2:  Strengthen our Program Infrastructure    


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Activities or Actions Steps to Meet Objectives Above:   


 


Year #2: 


• Ongoing Management System: Identified ChildPlus reports for services to ensure compliance.   


• Develop a Data Monitoring Schedule that identifies each data source (monitoring tool) collected and frequency timeline. 


• Eliminate manual entry to improve efficiency.  Develop written plans/procedures for electronic enrollment applications and touch screen attendance.   


 


Year #3:   


• ChildPlus data system professional consulting services provided support to strengthen the ongoing management system, daily/weekly attendance 


tracking and chronic absenteeism, electronic signatures, online applications, identified reports in each content area to ensure compliance and improved 


monitoring systems. 


• Revising program brochures and advertisement materials to market program options in the community. 


• Apply for expansion funds to expand Early Head Start services. 


• Apply for Program Improvement Funds to improve current buildings and playgrounds. 


• Increase classroom campus safety protocols.   


• Add Area Manager and Recruitment Coordinator positions to lower case load, improve staff support, and improve outreach and program quality.   


Additionally, the addition of Roving Substitutes would increase staff support. 


Year #4:   


• Applied for and awarded CCTR Expansion funds to increase infant/toddler care in Colusa. 


• Blended funding to extend part-day to full-day services to meet the needs of families. 


• County-wide collaboration and leadership with UPK Planning and implementation. 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


To improve the overall 


quality and increase school 


readiness for all children 


and their parents. 


Children will increase 


skills in language and 


literacy in dual 


languages. 


 


Children will increase 


skills in language and 


literacy.  


 


Children will 


demonstrate progress in 


language, literacy and 


mathematics 


achievement. 


 


Instructional staff will be 


trained to implement the 


Teaching Pyramid 


Framework to build 


social-emotional 


development.   


 


Associate Teachers will 


receive in depth 


professional development 


in alignment with 


program curriculum and 


philosophy.   


 


 


Incorporate positive 


behavior support through 


 


Winter Assessments 


from 2019 compared to 


Winter  2020 reflects: 


19% increase in 


Literacy 


17% increase in 


Language 


20% in Mathematics. 


 


 


Virtual learning 


provided culturally 


appropriate books to 


build home libraries 


for each child.  300 


tablets were received 


and provided to each 


child with F2B app 


available. 


 


Implement Teaching 


Pyramid practices to 


improve classroom 


practices and decrease 


behavior concerns.  


Establish method for 


tracking outcome. 


 


95% of children were 


identified at or above 


“middle range” of 


Every classroom 


library increased age 


appropriate books in 


English, Bicultural, 


and Bilingual books 


by 30%.  Book 


collections increased 


about 20 books per 


child. 


 


Data from 


Footsteps2Brilliance 


shows children read 


an average of  


275, 058.667 words 


August 2021-March 


2022. 


 


CLASS Scores: 


Emotional Support:  


5.85 (Quality 


Threshold:  6.0 - 


Competitive 


Threshold:  5.0) 


 


Classroom 


Organization:  5.19 


(Quality Threshold:  


6.0 - Competitive 


Threshold:  5.0) 


 


 


 Educate parents 


beginning at 


enrollment regarding 


the importance of 


regular and consistent 


attendance as this 


supports student 


success. 


 


Using the Child Plus 


data system to 


monitor attendance 


regularly and follow 


up on chronic 


absenteeism with 


resources and support 


for the family.                                                                   


A CLASS consultant 


was hired to conduct 


observations at each 


classroom.  CLASS 


scores have shown 


increase from last 


program year: 


• Emotional Support: 


6.06 


• Classroom 


Organization: 5.67 


• Instructional 


Support: 3.90 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


All classrooms will provide 


high quality, culturally 


responsive learning 


environments as measured by 


CLASS and Desired Results 


Systems for children to 


succeed. 


 


Equity, diversity, and inclusion 


for all children and family to 


ensure equal opportunity. 


 


Enhance language and literacy 


development for all children 


and families including dual 


language learners. 


 


Continue implementation of 


“And Literacy For All” 


Initiative.  Footsteps2Brilliance 


(F2B) Bi-Lingual Language 


and Literacy is embedded in 


daily preschool curriculum. 


 


All enrolled children and their 


families are prepared for life- 


long learning and Kindergarten. 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


 


Establish effective coaching 


plan to implement curriculum 


with fidelity and increase 


CLASS scores.  Maintain 


CLASS scores of National 


average and above.   


 


Continue to track and monitor 


children’s daily attendance data 


to improve and increase 


attendance rates and maintain 


attendance of 85% and above. 


promoting social-


emotional development 


to prevent challenging 


behaviors.   


 


Pilot Sobrato Early 


Academic Language 


(SEAL) in two out of 


three Williams Preschool 


classrooms. 


 


Increased knowledge and 


quality to support child 


outcomes, school 


readiness, and effective 


cohesive teams.   


 


Positive child outcomes 


and achieve school 


readiness goals. Maintain 


CLASS scores at or 


above national grantee 


level.     


 


Improve classroom daily 


attendance above the 


85% threshold.   


English Language 


Development based on 


CA Foundations which 


is an increase of 11% 


compared to Winter 


2019 assessment. 


 


Attended California 


Early Mathematics 


Initiative and 


professional 


development for staff.  


Strengthen 


mathematical areas in 


classroom 


environments with 


strong mathematical 


focus. 


 


CLASS results show 


preschool classrooms 


are 68.92% higher than 


National Average in 


the Language 


Modeling Domain. 


Conduct pre and post 


CLASS observations 


and provide additional 


coaching based on 


CLASS and DRDP 


scores.  Classrooms 


that scored lower than 


Instructional 


Support:  3.13 


(Quality Threshold: 


3.0 - Competitive 


Threshold:  2.3) 


 


Classrooms 


completed plans 


focused on 


increasing domain 


scores. 


 


Three staff are 


certified CLASS 


Observers. 


Conducted CLASS 


Observations and 


Calibration training 


towards evaluation. 


 


Participation in 


Teaching Pyramid 


Model Cohort and 


coaching sessions 


towards full 


implementation of 


Teaching Pyramid 


strategies.  Two staff 


completed Infant-


Toddler/Preschool 


Module Packages e-


pyramid modules in 


Continued 


collaboration with 


Special Education to 


transition children 


with IFSP/IEP’s and 


monthly collaboration 


to facilitate 


enrollment and 


transitions. 


 


Increase Learning 


Genie Family 


Engagement App 


participation to share 


child development 


knowledge and 


progress. Now at 70 


%. 


 


Increase skill and 


knowledge of 


coaching team. 


Monthly coaching 


community of practice 


and ongoing Office of 


Head Start coaching 


network participation. 


 


Strengthened our 


training plan for this 


program year to 


include trainings that 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


lowest National 


Average will submit a 


plan for improvement 


and receive ongoing 


coaching. 


Plan CLASS 


professional 


development from 


outside trainer. 


 


Coaching System 


includes a focus on 


CLASS, ERS, and 


DRDP quality 


improvement. 


 


Revise attendance 


tracking and 


monitoring system.  


Area Managers meet 


monthly. 


 


Increase Transition 


activities and improve 


Transition Plan. 


Culturally 


Responsive Practices 


to Reduce Implicit 


Bias, 


Disproportionality 


Suspension and 


Expulsion. 


 


Participation in TA 


support through OHS 


Completed Coaching 


Plan and 


implementation 


strategies. 


 


Improved utilization 


of ChildPlus reports 


to analyze daily 


attendance data on 


weekly basis.   


 


Monthly enrollment 


exceeded 50% 


enrollment 


requirements each 


month. 


 


Addressing 


challenges related to 


enrollment. 


 


are data informed and 


use Education 


Program Supervisors 


for capacity building 


and outside trainers to 


strengthen teachers' 


strategies and 


practices. 


 


Strategic purchasing 


to target areas of 


classrooms that need 


more material support 


and tie to trainings 


throughout the year. 


 


Develop and revise 


attendance procedures 


and provide training 


to address the 


importance of 


consistent and regular 


attendance. 


 


On going training for 


all staff on Teaching 


Pyramid Social 


Emotional Framework 


for preschool and 


infant/toddler staff 


through Quality 


Counts and ongoing 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Some assessments 


and screenings were 


delayed due to 


classroom closures. 


 


Health requirements 


including 


immunizations were 


difficult to obtain 


during COVID-19, 


many doctor offices 


closed and 


appointments 


cancelled. 


 


Partnered with 


Special Education to 


transition children 


with IEP’s and 


monthly 


collaboration to 


facilitate enrollment 


and transitions. 


 


Progress made with 


Ongoing 


Management System 


and identified reports 


will improve 


monitoring. 


 


coaching connected to 


this framework. 


Implement Teaching 


Pyramid Family 


Engagement training 


for parents. 


 


Developed Site 


Content monitoring 


system in Child Plus 


that all contents can 


use and strengthen our 


practices with specific 


timely follow up. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Identified need to 


standardize 


family/child files for 


a consistent system. 


 


California Preschool 


Instructional 


Network (CPIN) 


provided a series of 


professional 


development in 


topics related to early 


learning strategies, 


family engagement, 


and equity that 


relates to the 


California Preschool 


Learning 


Foundations and 


Frameworks.  


 


Education coaches 


and peer coaching 


continue to provide 


consistent guidance 


and support that has 


built staff 


confidence. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Activities or Actions Steps to Meet Objectives Above:   


 


Year #2: 


• Revise written procedures for maintaining children’s Developmental Portfolios.  Plan and implement training for staff. 


• Closely monitor attendance to ensure attendance maintains 85% and above. 


• Monitor Coaching Plan for quality improvement in CLASS, ERS, and DRDP Outcomes.  Analyze and report collected data.   


• Plan professional development for Fall of 2021/2022 on CLASS strategies. 


• Content-Area training plan to include calendar of topics by month, schedule of trainings for staff and parents, and resources. 


• Work with local Elementary School Principals/Teachers to improve transition plans. 


 


Year #3: 


• Continue professional development and continuous coaching in CLASS Domains.  


• Prepare for CLASS and Focus Area Two monitoring reviews. 


• Full implementation and monitoring of Teaching Pyramid Strategies will move forward. 


• Increase enrollment. 


• Ensure required health data and follow-up into ChildPlus is completed prior to enrollment, or as timely as possible.   


• Update Health Resource Binder. 


• Continue to update Guidance and Procedures. 


• Reached out to school district Principals/Superintendents to improve transitions, resources, and future planning opportunities. 


• Develop system to complete Champion Check-ins to encourage staff. 


• Continue partnership with California Department of Public Health Harvest of the Month club that provides hands on exploration to explore, taste, and 


learn about fruits and vegetables.  


• Partnered with California Early Math Initiative with Fresno State University and the AIMS Center to improve mathematical knowledge and importance 


of early mathematics.  


• Identified need to provide annual training on child/family file forms and process for completing and maintaining consistent file systems. 


Year #4: 


• Provided a stronger process and ongoing activities to encourage families to use the Learning Genie App for child development knowledge and progress 


as well as Footsteps2Brilliance App for literacy activities. 


• Provide a booth at Family Activity Nights to encourage family engagement in Learning Genie. 


• Developed and use an ongoing Site Content Monitoring system in Child Plus to strengthen our program and provide quality follow up and support. 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #3:  Improve the Quality of Early Learning and Promote School Readiness 


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


• Contract with outside consultant for capacity building for Education Program Supervisors to become trainers and for outside consultant to provide 


ongoing training for infant and toddler staff. 


• Using Quality Counts, provide program wide Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional Framework training for all staff.  Focus on implementing Teaching 


Pyramid Family Engagement Training. 


• Strengthening training plan to reflect data informed topics for staff. 


• Ongoing Learning Genie/Footsteps2Brilliance training to build upon and strengthen school readiness skills. 


• Streamlining the parent conference process for families using new features of Learning Genie with action plan and parent progress. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #4:  Build Family Engagement and Community Collaboration  


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Focus on empowering 


families through 


participation in their child’s 


education and community 


engagement.     


 Promote and increase 


family involvement.  


 


Increased attendance and 


parent engagement. 


 


Increased collaboration 


with stakeholders and 


identify available 


resources.  


 


Implement Learning 


Genie - Family 


Engagement dashboard 


to foster family 


involvement. 


 


Increased communication 


with health care 


professionals and obtain 


current child health 


records in a timely 


manner. 


 


Parenting skills will 


improve children’s 


learning and 


development and foster 


parental competence.   


Implemented 


Strengthening 


Families and Five 


Protective Factors as 


part of parenting 


curriculum and family 


goal planning.  


Develop system for 


data collection on the 


development and 


completion of Family 


Partnership 


Agreements. 


 


Parent Surveys 


identified:  83% of 


parents are very 


satisfied with how the 


program promotes 


children’s learning 


and development. 


 


Implemented 


Learning Genie 


Family App to engage 


families in daily 


curriculum and 


provide parenting 


resources.  61% of 


families are utilizing, 


16% pending, and 


23% did not provide 


Parent Survey 


identified 99% of 


families feel their 


child is safe and 97% 


of families feel their 


child is happy in their 


programs.  92% of 


families stated they 


were happy with their 


child’s learning and 


development.   


 


Parents are interested 


in participating in 


their child’s program, 


limited in-person 


participation and 


events due to COVID-


19.  Participation will 


increase next program 


year. 


 


Electronic signatures 


for signing children 


in/out began at 


beginning of year.  


Review of daily 


attendance data 


improved. 


 


Enrollment process 


was not completed in 


The annual 


community Family 


Fair was in-person 


and was well 


attended.   


 


Hired Recruitment 


Coordinator.   


 


Family Activity 


Nights have been 


successful.  


 


Conducted Parent 


Café's around Five 


Protective Factors and 


the developing brain.  


Provided dinner and 


incentives for parents. 


 


 Conduct a Family 


Outcomes Survey. 


 


Collaborative efforts 


have been successful 


in partnering with 


First Five to conduct 


the Home-Based 


program playgroup 


socializations.  


 


 


Children and their families 


have positive relationships and 


demonstrate increased social 


well-being. 


 


Restructure Parent Meetings 


and Parent Play Group 


Socializations.   


 


Improve collaboration with 


community partners and 


conduct outreach to form new 


connections.   


 


Improve communication with 


local health care professionals 


for families.  


 


Provide opportunities for 


parents to practice parenting 


skills to promote children’s 


learning and development.   


Enrolled children and 


families will have access to 


additional community 


resources to generate 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #4:  Build Family Engagement and Community Collaboration  


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


positive outcomes for 


families. 


email.  Continue to 


increase family 


utilization. 


 


Continue to increase 


family engagement 


activities that builds 


on family strengths. 


 


Develop annual 


calendar to include 


content area specific 


trainings for staff, 


parents, and 


community partners. 


 


Community 


collaboration 


continues through 


virtual meetings. 


 


Implemented School 


Messenger, a family 


notification and 


communication 


system, to inform 


parents about closures 


and upcoming events. 


 


Improve Recruitment 


Plan and develop a 


recruitment 


person for part of the 


year and limited 


parent participation. 


 


Families received 


community food 


baskets through local 


food drives.   


 


 Utilize Learning 


Genie Family App to 


engage families in 


daily curriculum.  


Improve plan for 


100% of parent usage.   


 


Hosted annual 


community Family 


Fair through drive-


through in 2020-2021 


and was well 


attended.  The Family 


Fair sponsors 


increased and will be 


an in-person event this 


year. 


 


 


The Teaching 


Pyramid Training 


Module is being 


offered to parents to 


promote positive 


social-emotional 


learning.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #4:  Build Family Engagement and Community Collaboration  


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


committee and 


detailed tracking 


system. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







   


 


   


 


Program Goal #4:  Build Family Engagement and Community Collaboration  


 


Objective(s) 


 


Progress, Outcomes, and Challenges                                                                          


Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 Year4  Year 5 


Activities or Actions Steps to Meet Objectives Above:   


 


Year #2 


• Create annual calendar of Parent Meetings, Family Activity Nights/Socializations/Guest Speakers/Parent Trainings to increase Family Engagement. 


• Support families with Learning Genie Family App/Footsteps2Brilliance at enrollment. 


• Improve Recruitment Plan, develop tracking systems for monitoring recruitment efforts. 


• Develop a training plan on Strengthening Families Five Protective Factors Approach for parenting curriculum. 


 


Year #3: 


• Support parents with downloading Learning Genie and Footsteps2Brilliance Apps during enrollment and use Apps to increase communication. 


• Create new position to support additional outreach and improve recruitment efforts to increase enrollment. 


• Utilize ChildPlus (FINA form) aligned with PFCE Frameworks to track family needs and services. 


• Market materials to increase community awareness and create partnerships with programs that support pregnant families. 


• Follow Recruitment Plan and track recruitment efforts by each community utilizing the Community Outreach Tracker, Inquiry forms, and # of 


applicants. 


• Fully develop parenting curriculum materials based on Five Protective Factors for Strengthening Families parenting curriculum. 


• Partnered with Resource & Referral to host two Parent Café family community night trainings. 


• Look into establishing a Family Engagement Committee. 


• Continue to track family engagement activities/training opportunities and measure participation. 


• Request a demonstration on Parent’s Square, electronic platform for school to home communication, towards improving parent engagement. 


•  


Year #4:   


• Continue support for parents with utilizing Learning Genie and Footsteps2Brilliance Apps. 


• Participation at Parent Café's and Family Activity Nights have increased.   


• Continue to monitor need for EHS home-based services. 


 


 







      345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932    www.ccoe.net 


     


 


 Colusa County Office of Education 
                       Children’s Services 
                     


 


 


 


 


                    


 


                


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


2022-2023 


 


Annual Head Start Report 


  


Item # 7.6







1 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 


Table of Contents 


Table of Contents - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 


A Message from the Director - - - - - - 2 


History of Head Start - - - - - - - - - - 3 


Our Story - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 3 


Program Philosophy - - - - - - - - - - - 4 


Five Year Goals- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 5 


Health, Mental & Nutrition Services – 7-8 


Enrollment and Attendance - - - - - 9 


Children’s Services Programs - - - -10 


Approach to School Readiness  - - - -11 


“And Literacy for All” Initiative - - 12 


Total Number of Employees - - - 13-14 


Curriculum - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 15-17 


Recent Reviews - - - - - - - - - - - - - 17 


Child Outcomes - - - - - - - - - - - - - -18 


Outcomes for Teachers - - - - - -  -19-20 


Family Involvement and Community 


Engagement - - - - - - - - - - - - - 21-26 


Health and Wellness - - - - - - -  27-28 


Fiscal Responsibility - - - - - - - -29-30 


Program Governance - - - - - - - - - 31 


 


 


 


 
 
 


    
 
 


“No everything is fine thank you very 
much for caring and educating my son” 


 
 


 
 


 


Arbuckle Children’s Center 
 Parent quotes 


 


 
 


“To promote quality school readiness within the earliest years 


 in collaboration with our community partners.” 


 







2 
 


Colusa County Office of Education – Children’s Services  


 
                                                   
 
 
We have conquered another successful year at the Colusa County Office of 


Education – Children’s Services department!  We continue to accomplish our 


goals of making a difference in the lives of families and children within our 


community of Colusa County. 


Through the ongoing efforts of our Executive and Leadership Teams, our 
dedicated staff, instrumental Policy Council and community members, we have 
truly brought the Head Start model to life in which every child, regardless of 
circumstances at birth; have the ability to reach their full potential. With 
collaboration and stellar leadership, our program continuously provides families 
and children access to high quality early educational programs in their earliest 
and most vulnerable years.  Each day, we make a positive difference in the lives 
of children through the outstanding dedication of our staff and educational 
experiences we provide on a daily basis.   
 
Our Head Start and State funded programs are the foundation that builds school 
readiness and future success.  As we all know, young children today, are our 
future tomorrow. Investing in children is why we are committed to providing 
comprehensive services with excellence. 
 
                 
 
                                          
                                                              
 
Best Regards, 
 
 


Vicki Markss 
Executive Director  
Colusa County Office of Education  
Children’s Services Early Education Programs 


A Message from the Director 


 


  
    


 







3 
 


The History of Head Start 
Head Start is one of the most important social and 
educational investment in our communities, children, and 
families.  The Head Start Project was launched in 1965 as 
a comprehensive child development program for children 
from birth to five years of age.  Administered by the Office 
of Head Start, the Head Start model provides a range of 
individualized services in the areas of early education, 
health, mental health, nutrition, special needs, and parent 
engagement.  Over the past 52 years, it has provided 
opportunities for success to more than 32 million low-
income and other vulnerable children and their families 
across the United States.  Head Start programs have 
remained strong even with changing fiscal and political 
surroundings because of years of success. 
 
 


 
  


Our Story & What We Do 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Children’s Services 
has a long 
tradition of 
providing 
comprehensive 
high quality early 
education 
throughout Colusa 
County.  We are 
committed to 
preparing children 
and their families 
for future school 
success.  


 
CCOE – Children’s Services purpose is to prepare children and their families for future success and 
opportunities for lifelong learning.   
 
We offer Early Head Start, Head Start, and State funded early care and education programs 
throughout Colusa County.  Program options include part-day, full-day, and full-year center-based 
options for ages birth-5 years.  Our Early Head Start program offers a weekly home visiting option for 
pregnant families and children up to 36 months.   
 
We operate a state funded seasonal migrant program to meet the abundant need of our rural 
community.  This center is conveniently located near the migrant camp and serves an additional 40 
children throughout the season. 
 
Our subsidized childcare services include Alternative Payment and CalWORKs programs.  Children 
ages birth through 12 years of age received child care services offered through our Alternative Payment 
Program while 46 Licensed Daycare Providers received  professional development and training to 
ensure families who are working, in school, or training receive quality care through support from our 
Resource and Referral Program. 


 
 







4 
 


 
  


Our Program Philosophy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
CCOE-Children’s Services is dedicated to enriching the lives of all children and families 


through providing high quality educational programs and connecting families with 
individualized childcare services. 


 
Nurturing, responsive, and consistently secure environments provide children with a 


foundation to achieve at their optimal levels of success. 
 


Each child is unique and learns best through intentional instruction that is 
developmentally appropriate, inclusive, and provides enriched exploration, discovery, and 


meaningful play opportunities. 
 


We are committed to improving excellence in Early Care and Education and childcare 
services.  Together, in collaboration with other service-driven agencies and parents, we strive 


to build positive connections between home and school within our community of Colusa 
County. 


 
 


 







5 
 


 
 
 
 


Our Strategic Five-Year Goals 2019-2024 
 


 


Goal #1:  
To Promote Staff Retention. Recruitment and Individual 
Professional Development 


Goal #2:  
To Strengthen our Departmental Organization 


Goal #4  
To Improve the Quality of Early Learning that Promotes School 
Readiness 


Goal #5  
To Build Family Engagement & Community Collaboration 


 
 


“Thank you, you are all great!”   Children’s Services parent quote. 


 


 


 


 


       
 


 







6 
 


Health, Mental Health, and Nutrition Services 
CCOE - Children’s Services supports children’s learning and wellness through comprehensive 
health and nutritional services.  We ensure children receive updated physicals, 
immunizations, hearing, vision, and nutritional screenings and follow up as needed.  
 
We collaborate with Colusa County Behavioral Health Department while mental health 
consultants provide observations and strategies that support classroom activities and 
individual behaviors. 
 Within our inclusive environments, children and families are eligible for referrals and 
additional support services. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
                                                                                    
 
 


Early Head Start: 
• 100% of children received medical insurance 
• 100% of children found a medical home 
• 100% of children found a dental home 
• 69% of children were up to date on their Well Baby Exams 
• 97% of children were either up to date, received all possible 


Immunizations, or were exempt 
• 100% received Vision and Hearing Screenings 


EHS Home Based Educators 


received in depth curriculum 


training to support families 


before baby arrives through 


toddler’s 3rd year.  


Home Visitors utilize a research-


based digital curriculum to 


effectively plan meaningful 


weekly home visits that 


promotes positive family and 


child development and family 


health.  Topics include:  


 Relationships & Support 


 Virtual learning 


 Nutrition, Health, & Safety 


 Parenting and Guidance 


 Social Emotional, Language 


& Literacy Development 


 Play, Learning, & Cognition 


 







7 
 


 
 


                                        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
                   


 


  


“Amaya loves everyone and loves 
coming to school, thank you for all 


you do.”    
 


A parent quote from the 
Colusa Children’s Center Program. 


 


                                          


 


Dental Screenings are 


conducted in preschool 


classrooms by our 


collaborative partner,  


Nancy Read, BS, RDH, 


Children’s Oral Health 


Outreach Coordinator, with 


Northern Valley Indian 


Health, at no additional 


cost. 


Head Start: 


• 100% of children received medical insurance 
• 100% of children found a medical home 
• 100% of children found a dental home 
• 72% of children were up to date on their Physician Exams 
• 100% of children were either up to date, received all possible immunizations, 


or were exempt 
• 83% of children who completed dental exams needs routine care 
• 1 child receieved attention soon. 


 


 


 


 


 


   







8 
 


 


 


 


 


Total Number of Children currently enrolled 


through March 2023: 


HS = 59 EHS = 25 
 


 







9 
 


Enrollment and Attendance  


for Head Start Programs 


Our program received Early Head Start/Head Start 
funding to provide services to 168 children.  We provide 


services to 62 children in Early Head Start and 106 
children in Head Start. 


 
This year’s Cumulative total number of children served 
through EHS:  32 children and for HS:  60 children.   


 


“Great support for single parent homes.” 
Colusa Children’s Center parent 


 


Eligibility for Early Head 


Start and Head Start 


programs are dependent on the 


following criteria: 


 Federal Poverty 


Guidelines 


 Special Needs 


 Status of Foster Child 


 Homelessness 


 Recipient of Public 


Assistance 


A Centralized Eligibility List 


is maintained and prioritized 


for each funded program 


option in Colusa County. 


 


 


 


 


 


Head Start Eligibility 


20% of children served had an IEP or IFSP 


 


 


“I’m happy and it makes it 


easy to drop Ava off due to her 


loving the teachers, she really 


enjoys coming to school.” 


Colusa Preschool Learning 


Center A Preschool parent. 


 


 







10 
 


Children’s Services Programs     
Children’s Services successfully operates several Federal and State funded programs all under 
one building which provides  seamless services to families and the community.  Below is a list 
of funded programs and percentages of each that allows us to meet the varying and abundant 


needs of our community.    


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







11 
 


Preparing Children for Kindergarten 
Children and families are prepared for success in school and throughout life.  Early education 
and support for parents is promoted through: 


 


• Home Visits, Play Groups, and daily educational learning experiences 


• Health & Mental Health screenings for optimal health so children can learn at their full 
potential 


• Assessments and screenings 


• Support to secure local medical and dental services 


• Empowering families to be advocates for their children 


• Family engagement  in school activities, parent education, and meetings 


• Collaboration with local school districts and Kindergarten teachers 


• Visits to Elementary School and Kindergarten classrooms 


• Opportunities for life-long learning 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
CCOE - Children’s Services provides nurturing, responsive, and secure environments 
that presents every child the ability to achieve at their optimal level of success and to 
build a strong foundation. 
 
We recognize the importance of a holistic and integrated approach and focus on each 
child’s individual development.  The Head Start Early Learning Framework focuses on 
essential developmental areas that include:   Approaches to Learning, Social and 
Emotional Development, Language and Literacy, Cognition, and Perceptual, Motor, and 
Physical Development. 
 
We utilize intentional teaching strategies that encourage active and engaged learners. 
Our program is developmentally and linguistically appropriate while being sensitive to 
the individual and cultural needs of all children.  Acquisition of the English language 
is promoted as well as knowledge from their home language. 
 
On-going observation and assessment facilitates child outcomes and meeting the 


individual needs of each child. Families are supported as their child’s first influences 


and greatest advocates as we prepare children for Kindergarten and lifelong learning. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







12 
 


Our Approach to School Readiness                                                                                                               


 


“And Literacy for All” 
CCOE has created a literacy initiative to promote bilingual reading and writing skills for all 
young children who reside within Colusa County utilizing mobile technology.  The primary 
goal behind the initiative is to have all children reading at or above grade level by the end of 
3rd grade.  An Innovative Approaches to Literacy grant of $2.25 million over a three-year period 
by the U.S. Department of Education was awarded in 2019.  Through this grant, CCOE’s entire 
literacy outreach to Colusa County students, ages 2-7 years old has been boosted to a level far 
beyond its 5-year plan.  The project has allowed CCOE to build classroom libraries and books 
for children to take home along with new technology devices.  Early learners will receive access 
to print and digital literacy programming, e-books, and interactive songs and games that 
make learning fun!  This project will provide greater access to educational programs across our 
rural community and expand professional development opportunities for our early education 
teachers and educators.  
 
Footsteps2Brilliance mobile application provides children with comprehensive curriculum 
enhancements through interactive books, songs, and games that may be utilized through both 
English and Spanish languages.  Footsteps2Brillance links learning in school and home and 
provides opportunities for greater achievement through fun and engaging activities. 
 
These programs helped our program shift from classroom to virtual learning during the 
COVID-19 Pandemic and supported welcoming and inclusive virtual classrooms. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
           


 
 


 
 
 


 







13 
 


Total Number of Employees That Make up Our Team 
 


 







14 
 


  







15 
 


 


 
 
 
 


 
 


 


                   


 


A Parent Quote from the Colusa Children’s Center Program 


 


 


 


 







16 
 


An Example of our preschool theme study about Trees 


 
 
 


 







17 
 


Print Enriched Environments Support Language  
and Literacy 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
Results of Our Most Recent Monitoring Reviews 
 
Our most recent federal review from the Office of Head Start was the Focus Area Two 
Monitoring Review, conducted in December, 2022.  All areas were found in compliance. 
 
Education Services, Health Services, Family and Community Engagement Services, Fiscal 
Infrastructure, Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance (ERSEA) 
December of 2022.  All areas were found in compliance. 
 







18 
 


Achieving Developmental Outcomes for Children 
 


Our children continue to make progress across all learning domains.  We utilize research-
based curriculum, the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework and the California 
Instructional Framework and Foundations that supports all learning.   
 The Desired Results Developmental Profile (DRDP) is completed three times per year in Fall, 
Winter, and Spring and represents significant growth at or above foundation expectations 
towards school readiness.     
 


 


 
Children gain progress and Children’s Services makes a positive 


difference! 
 







19 
 


Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) 


CCOE – Children’s Services utilizes the Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) 
tool as a valid and reliable instrument that assesses teacher-child interactions, classroom 
quality, and is linked to positive child outcomes.  The three domains of CLASS consist of 
Emotional Support, Classroom Organization, and Instructional Support.                                 


 
• ClASS assesses three domains and ten dimensions of teacher-child interactions.  


Results from the last onsite CLASS observations have shown Children’s Services 
average CLASS scores remained above competition thresholds and will continue 
improving quality in all three domains.   
  


                                          
 
 
 
 


 


 


A quote from one of our parents at the 


Colusa Preschool Learning Center Program 







20 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


    
A Buildings/Road Study Activity included children building a “city”, 


learning    about construction and the work of community partners in our 
cities.  


A Family 


Activity Night at 


the Williams 


Children’s Center 


included making 


small story-


books.   


Such a Fun 


Time! 







21 
 


Family Involvement and Community Engagement 


Engaged families are essential to the well-being and development of young children.   
We see parents as a child’s most important influence towards their child’s success.  Building 
a shared partnership with families gives parents opportunities to stay involved with the 
education of their child.   
Parents collaborated with many activities and participated in the following: 


• Community Guest Speakers including Local Law Enforcement, Fire Departments 


• Family Fair 


• Fatherhood Conference 


• Food Basket 


• Footsteps 2 Brilliance Literacy APP 


• Goal Setting 


• Harvest of the month 


• Head Start Parent Conference 


• Home Visits and Parent & Teacher Conferences 


• Kindergarten Preparation 


• Monthly Calendar Activities 


• Nutrition and Education Trainings 


• Open House  
• Parent Orientation 


• Parent Trainings: Car Seat Safety, Child Abuse 
Prevention, Positive Discipline 


• Pedestrian Safety 


• Play Groups  
• Playground sidewalk painting 


• Policy Council Meetings  
• Transition Meetings  


 
 


 
 
                                             


A well-attended Family Fair! 


Premier Mushrooms, an active member of the 


community participates in our annual Family Fair. 


Children enjoyed the  mushroom paint stamping 


activity, 







22 
 


Community Partnerships               
• Alta California Regional Center 


• Ampla Health 


• Arbuckle and Williams Family Action Centers 


• Head Start Region IX 


• Head Start Cluster VIII 


• Community Advocates for Parents & Children 
(CAPC) 


• Colusa County Behavioral Health Services  


• Colusa County Campus of Woodland Community 
College 


• Colusa County Child Support Services  


• Colusa County Department of Health and Human Services 


• Colusa County Office of Education – Educational Services, 
Second Step – Social Emotional Curriculum Program  


• Colusa County Office of Education – Educational Services, 
McKinney-Vento/Homeless Program 


• Colusa County Office of Education - Special Education  


• Colusa County One-Stop  


• Colusa County Partner’s for Health  


• Colusa Resource Center  


• Colusa County School Districts  


• Community Collaborative Prevention  


• County Branch Libraries  


• County of Colusa Agencies/Departments  


• Family Action Centers of Colusa County 


• Family Soup  


• First 5 Colusa  


• Local Dental Homes 


• Nutrition and Physical Activity Self-Assessment for 
Child Care (NAP SACC) 


• Quality Counts California – Keys to Quality  


• Women infants and Children (WIC)  
 
 


 
“Teachers are great!”  A Parent Quote from the Colusa Preschool Learning Center B 


 







23 
 


Family Engagement 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


                                


                   


 


“All information related to our children and staff who work with them, very good service. Thank 


you!! For providing us with these services.” 


 


A Parent Quote from the Williams Children’s Center Program. 
 


 


 


Williams 


Children 


Center’s 


math-themed 


Family 


Activity 


Night 







24 
 


CCOE-Children’s Services would like to thank our  
Policy Council Representatives for their 


support and involvement in our program! 


 
 
 
 
 


 


                                                                                                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


                                                                                                                           
 


                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                               


                                                                                        


                                                                                                                              


                                                                                                                         


                                                                                                                                                         


Colusa County Office of 


Education – Children’s 


Services Policy Council 


Representatives attended the 


Head Start Advocacy event 


at the CA State Capital. 


 


 


     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Marisa Apaseo – 


Community 


Representative 


                 


 


         


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Patricia Medina de 
Salazar 


AECEC Alternate  


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Lisbeth Corona –  
AECEC 


Representative 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Astrid Fernandez – 
 WPLC A Representative 


 


 
 


 
 
Irene  Cruz-  
CCC  Representative 


 


                                    
 
 
 


                                              Maria L. Medina  
                                        Past Parent 


 







25 
 


  







26 
 


 







27 
 


Classified Employee of the 


Fall Trimester awards goes 


to Alma Villasenor, 


Children's Services Family 


Services Supervisor 


Health and Wellness  


CCOE - Children’s Services understands the importance of and supports staff health and 
wellness throughout its department.  CCOE-Children’s Services values opportunities for 
professional development and understands that highly trained and knowledgeable staff 
provides improved child outcomes and family support.   


In an effort to promote well-being among Children's Services staff, a Colusa 
County Office of Education – Children’s Services Staff Wellness Newsletters, 
"Well at Work" was created this year.   
This newsletter includes tips for taking care 
of yourself within the five elements outlined 
to include: information, resources, 
interactive activities, useful videos, and 
more! CCOE-Children’s Services understands 
that self-care leads to better interactions 
with children and other staff.  
 
New to CCOE – Children’s Services are presentations of Trimester Awards.  CCOE - Children’s 
Services presents trimester awards to identified teachers, and classified and certificated staff.   
Staff -Recognition is something CCOE values and is much-admired by employees.    
 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 


Claudia Bernal of 


Arbuckle Children's 


Center was presented with 


the Certificated Employee 


of the Fall Trimester 


 


Viridiana Pimentel was awarded Colusa 


County Office of Education- Children's 


Services "Teacher of the Fall Trimester" 


Employee of the Fall 


Trimester awards goes to 


Fany Sandoval, 


Children's Services 


Accounting Clerk. 







28 
 


An in-service day is planned on the first Friday of March every year which consists of celebrating our 


team’s successes and fun activities, such as origami stars, for staff… a stress-free day! 


CCOE - Children’s Services has a “Sunshine Committee” that puts together fun and uplifting 
activities that build staff morale and workplace culture.   Due to the importance of not only 
physical, but also mental and emotional well-being.   
 
 
CCOE-Children’s Services Executive Team organizes a pre-service day to begin a new year and 
an in-service day mid-year for all employees.  The trainings ae implemented to motivate and 
boost morale, celebrate our program’s successes and to demonstrate our appreciation for our 
fantastic team!  
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







29 
 


 


 


 


CCOE-Children’s Services acknowledges, National Employee Appreciation Day, which falls on 
the first Friday of March every year 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


_________________________________________________________ 


 The items distributed include but are not limited to:  Tri County 
Schools Insurance Group (TCSIG) Wellness Newsletter, North Valley School Insurance Group 
Wellness Newsletter, North Valley School Insurance Group Safety Newsletter, TCSIG and 
Delta TeamCare Walk Across America Challenge, Free Annual Health Evaluations (for TCSIG 
Members).  Many events sponsored by our community partners promote staff wellness and 
are shared with all staff.   







30 
 


 
 


Total Amounts of Public 
and Private Funds Received  
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Head Start Budgetary Expenditures for 2022-2022   


 


 


“Thankful to move my child 


in this program because it 


has positively impacted her 


in her learning and growing 


skills and as well has given 


me the opportunity to keep 


my job. 


Williams Children’s Center –


Parent 


 


 


 


 







31 
 


 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Children’s Services Program 
Parent 


 


 


 
“No, they are simply a great support in the development of 


my son, from the beginning I was able to notice the 
progress and I feel very happy that he is part of the 


program.” 
 
 


A parent quote from, Williams Preschool Learning Center 
A 


 
 


A parent quote from, Williams 
Preschool Learning Center B 


 







32 
 


 
Our Executive Team 


 


 
 
 


Back Row, Left to Right:   
Donyale Miller– Education Services Division Manager 


Joseph Moye – Family Services Division Manager  
Front Row, Left to Right: 


Rosa Talamantes – Fiscal Specialist 
Vicki Markss – Executive Director 


Julie Rivera – Program Support Technician  


 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







33 
 


 


Leadership Team Members: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Back Row, Left to Right:   
Irma F. Roque - Health Specialist,  


Lydia Navarro - Family Engagement Coordinator  
Angela Padilla – Education Program Supervisor 


Licia Dering - Special Needs Coordinator 
Julie Rivera –Program Support Technician 


Alma Villasenor –Family Services Supervisor 
Front Row, Left to Right: 


Donyale Miller– Education Program Division Manager 
Rosa Talamantes – Fiscal Specialist 


Vicki Markss – Executive Director 
Cesilee Godinez - Education Program Supervisor 
Joseph Moye –Family Services Division Manager 


Not Pictured:  Bianca Talamantes – Education Program Supervisor 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Find a Head Start job near you or anywhere in the U.S. </job-center>


FY 2023 Head Start Funding Increase
ACF-PI-HS-23-02


PROGRAM INSTRUCTION
TO: Head Start and Early Head Start Grantees and Delegate Agencies


SUBJECT: FY 2023 Head Start Funding Increase


INSTRUCTION:


President Biden signed the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023, into law on December 29, 2022.


The funding level for programs under the Head Start Act (the Act) is $11,996,820,000, an increase of


$960 million over �scal year (FY) 2022. This increase includes $596 million to provide all Head Start,


Early Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care (EHS-CC) Partnership grant recipients a 5.6% cost-


of-living adjustment (COLA), $262 million for quality improvement, and $100 million for expansion of


Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CC (Early Head Start-Child Care) Partnership programs. The


total appropriation also includes $8 million for Tribal College and University Head Start (TCU-HS)


Partnership programs, of which $2 million is an increase over the FY 2022 funding level.


This Program Instruction (PI) primarily provides information about COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment)


and quality improvement funds available to all Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CC (Early Head


Start-Child Care) Partnership grant recipients. Grant recipients subject to competition for continued


funding through the Designation Renewal System (DRS) are entitled to COLA (Cost-of-living


Adjustment) funds through the end of their current award. However, the Administration for Children


and Families reserves the right to delay decisions on quality improvement funding until DRS


(Designation Renewal System) competition decisions are �nal. State collaboration grants are not


eligible for COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) or quality improvement funding due to the statutory


cap on their funding in the Head Start Act.


U.S. (UNITED STATES) DEPARTMENT


OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES


1. Log Number: ACF-PI-HS-23-


02


2. Issuance Date: 02/21/2023


3. Originating Of�ce: Of�ce of Head Start


4. Key Words: Consolidated Appropriations Act; Appropriations;


Fiscal Year 2023; Funding Increase; Cost of Living Adjustment;


Quality Improvement


ACF


Administration for Children


and Families


Item # 8.1



https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/job-center

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/





FY 2023 Quality Improvement


Each grant recipient will be allocated an amount of quality improvement funding proportionate to


their federal funded enrollment — approximately $280 for each Head Start funded enrollment slot


and $420 for each Early Head Start funded enrollment slot. There will be a minimum �oor established


to ensure all recipients are able to make a meaningful investment in quality, consistent with Sec.


640(a)(4)(C) </policy/sec-640-allotment-funds-limitations-assistance> of the Act.


A program may apply to use quality improvement funds for activities consistent with Sec. 640(a)(5),


as outlined in Attachment A  </sites/default/�les/pi/resources/acf-pi-hs-23-02-attachment-a.pdf>


[PDF, 28KB], except that any amount of these funds may be used on any of the activities speci�ed in


such section. In other words, programs are not bound by the requirement in Sec. 640(a)(5)(A) that at


least 50% of quality improvement funds be used for staff compensation or the requirement in Sec.


640(a)(5)(B)(vii) that no more than 10% of quality improvement funds be used on transportation.


However, the Of�ce of Head Start (OHS) strongly encourages grant recipients to prioritize quality


improvement funding to increase compensation for staff (wages and bene�ts) to help recruit and


retain a quali�ed Head Start workforce. OHS (Of�ce of Head Start) also strongly encourages


recipients to consider investments to support and strengthen the mental health of children, families,


and staff in the program.


A well-compensated staff is integral to delivering high-quality services for children and families. The


Head Start workforce plays a critical role in ful�lling the Head Start mission by supporting the holistic


development of children and economic stability for families. While staff quali�cations have steadily


increased in the last 10 years, compensation and bene�ts have not followed suit. Many Head Start


programs have struggled to recruit and retain quali�ed staff with the ongoing early care and


education workforce shortage. High-quality services for children and families are disrupted by high


turnover rates and a shortage of frontline staff, particularly teachers, assistant teachers, home


visitors, family child care providers, family service workers, transportation staff, and staff who


provide mental and behavioral health services. Increasing compensation is a key strategy to promote


recruitment and retention of quali�ed staff and ensure programs are competitive employers in their


local communities. Improved retention of staff also helps to ensure high-quality classroom and home


learning environments, promote healthy developmental outcomes for children, and strengthen


relationships with families. In September 2022, OHS (Of�ce of Head Start) released Information


Memorandum ACF-IM-HS-22-06 </policy/im/acf-im-hs-22-06> directing Head Start grant recipients to


permanently increase salaries for the purposes of recruiting and retaining staff. Head Start grant


recipients are strongly encouraged to use quality funds to advance a strategy to permanently


increase wages and bene�ts.


OHS (Of�ce of Head Start) recognizes that many Head Start grant recipients are serving children and


families with enhanced mental health needs. Increased symptoms of anxiety and depression, coupled


with the impact of trauma, grief, and loss during the pandemic, has elevated the importance of


supporting children's social and emotional well-being, as well as the mental well-being of adults who


care for them. It is essential that children, staff, and families receive necessary supports for mental


health and wellness as an integral part of program services. OHS (Of�ce of Head Start) strongly



https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/sec-640-allotment-funds-limitations-assistance

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/pi/resources/acf-pi-hs-23-02-attachment-a.pdf

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/im/acf-im-hs-22-06

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/





encourages programs to consider ways to use quality improvement funding to invest in mental health


supports at all levels of the program, including mental health consultation to support Head Start


teachers in managing challenging behavior and supporting children.


Examples of investments that would re�ect these OHS (Of�ce of Head Start) priorities and also align


with allowable uses of quality improvement funding as speci�ed in the Act may include, but are not


limited to, the following:


Increase compensation, particularly for positions that are not receiving competitive wages and


bene�ts (including consideration of elementary school compensation), experiencing higher


rates of turnover, challenging to �ll, or preventing programs from reaching full enrollment.


Increase career opportunities for entry level staff through support for increased credentials


and commensurate compensation increases, including through scholarships, mentors, and


coaches.


Support staff wellness with regularly scheduled breaks and access to employee assistance


services.


Improve preventive mental health screening, assessment, and interventions.


Enhance mental health consultation — including hiring of additional mental health


professionals — to better support staff and improve the organizational approach to identifying


mental health needs and integrating supports and services for children, families, and staff.


Hire additional quali�ed classroom staff or �oaters to lower ratios, enhance adult-child


relationships, and ensure staff can have breaks during the day.


Hire additional quali�ed family services staff or home visitors to decrease caseloads and


enhance family-staff relationships and improve quality of responsive, individualized services.


Provide ongoing coaching and support to staff to address stress, burnout, and related turnover.


Provide training on trauma-informed approaches to all staff, governing boards, and Policy


Councils, and ensure training is accompanied with coaching and opportunities for re�ective


practice and supervision.


Enhance transportation services to promote more regular participation by children and


families in services designed to support development and learning and address trauma.


Finally, while grant recipients should prioritize ongoing, sustained investments in quality


improvements, OHS (Of�ce of Head Start) does acknowledge that one-time investments in FY 2023


may be necessary. Grant recipients encountering one-time program improvement needs that cannot


be addressed with existing program funds are invited to apply for supplemental funding. See below


for further discussion on one-time program improvement funding requests.


FY 2023 COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment)


Each grant recipient may apply for a COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) increase of 5.6% of the FY


2022 base funding level. Base funding excludes training and technical assistance funds and any one-


time funding received during FY 2022.



https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/





Programs must use COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) funds to permanently increase the salaries of


Head Start staff. This includes salaries of current staff and un�lled vacancies. Programs may consider


a permanent uniform percent increase to the Head Start pay scale or differential COLA (Cost-of-


living Adjustment) increases to the pay scale across position types within the program. For instance,


in some programs, higher paid positions may already be receiving wages competitive with


comparable positions in the community. In these instances, programs may choose to provide a smaller


COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) to these positions. Programs could also think about providing a


larger COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) to lower paid positions that are not currently receiving a


wage suf�cient to cover costs of living, or that are very challenging to �ll due to low wages. Such


positions may need more of an increase to support more competitive wages that are comparable with


similar jobs in the community, including the consideration of salaries paid to staff in local elementary


schools. If a grant recipient chooses to apply COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) differentially across


positions, they must explain this choice in their application.


Sections 653 </policy/head-start-act/sec-653-comparability-wages> and 640(j) </policy/sec-640-allotment-funds-


limitations-assistance> of the Act provide further guidance on the uses and limitations of COLA (Cost-of-


living Adjustment) funds. Sec. 653 restricts compensation to a Head Start employee that is higher


than the average rate of compensation paid for substantially comparable services in the area where


the program is operating. Any grant recipient concerned that they cannot increase salaries for staff


due to wage comparability issues should ensure public school salaries for elementary school staff are


included in their considerations. Sec. 653 also prohibits any Head Start employee from being


compensated at a rate that exceeds that of an Executive Schedule Level II position, including


employees being paid through indirect costs. Sec. 640(j) of the Act requires that compensation of


Head Start employees be improved regardless of whether the agency has the ability to improve the


compensation of staff employed by the agency that do not provide Head Start services. Head Start


grant recipients must provide delegate agencies and other partners an equivalent increase to adjust


salaries and wages scales. If a grant recipient proposes to apply differential COLA (Cost-of-living


Adjustment) increases between delegates or partners, they must justify this in their application.


COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) funds must be applied from the start of a recipient's FY 2023


budget period, which may need to be retroactively applied.


As speci�ed in 45 CFR §1302.90 </policy/45-cfr-chap-xiii/1302-90-personnel-policies>,


<https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/45-cfr-chap-xiii/1302-90-personnel-policies> each grant recipient is required


to establish written personnel policies and procedures that are approved by the governing body and


Policy Council. They must be made available to all staff. Personnel policies and procedures should be


reviewed as they may contain information relevant to this COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment).


Any remaining funds may be applied to fringe bene�ts costs or used to offset increased operating


costs in other areas of the budget. This includes increased costs in rent, utilities, facilities


maintenance and insurance, contractual arrangements, vehicle fuel and maintenance, and supplies.



https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/head-start-act/sec-653-comparability-wages

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/sec-640-allotment-funds-limitations-assistance

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/45-cfr-chap-xiii/1302-90-personnel-policies

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/45-cfr-chap-xiii/1302-90-personnel-policies

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/





Application Requirements for COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) and Quality
Improvement Funding


Grant recipients must request COLA (Cost-of-living Adjustment) and quality improvement funds


through an application in the Head Start Enterprise System. A funding guidance letter will be issued


shortly to specify each funding level and additional instructions on how to apply for these funds.


Expansion of Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CC (Early Head Start-Child Care)
Partnerships


One hundred million dollars is available to support new grants for Head Start, Early Head Start, and


EHS-CC (Early Head Start-Child Care) Partnership programs to increase access to high-quality early


education services. Funding will be awarded by September 2024. A notice of funding opportunity is


expected in fall 2023. More information on this opportunity will be available later this year.


TCU-HS (Tribal College and University Head Start) Partnership Program Funding


Two million dollars is available to support TCU-HS (Tribal College and University Head Start)


partnership programs. Per Sec. 648(g) </policy/head-start-act/sec-648-technical-assistance-training> of the


Head Start Act, such funding is intended to support tribal colleges and universities to implement


efforts to strengthen career pathways and degree obtainment for Head Start staff, in partnership


with American Indian and Alaska Native Head Start agencies. A competitive funding opportunity will


be posted in spring or summer 2023. Funding will be awarded by the end of September 2023.


One-time Program Improvement Funding Requests


Grant recipients encountering program improvement needs related to health and safety should


contact their Regional Of�ce and submit supplemental applications throughout the year as needs


emerge. Programs must plan for major costs and should not be reliant on supplemental requests for


major maintenance and purchases. Supplemental requests are intended for pressing program


improvement needs that cannot be addressed with existing operational funds through careful


planning, for instance if a recipient has an unexpected facility issue due to harsh climate or


unexpected loss of equipment. These applications are addressed by priority and there is no guarantee


on the availability of funds for supplemental requests.


Please direct any questions regarding this PI (Program Instruction) to your regional of�ce.


Thank you for your work on behalf of children and families.


/ Tala Hooban /


Tala Hooban


Acting Director


Of�ce of Head Start


Resources:


Attachment A: Allowable Uses of Quality Improvement Funds as Speci�ed in the Head Start Act 


</sites/default/�les/pi/resources/acf-pi-hs-23-02-attachment-a.pdf> [PDF, 28KB]


See PDF Version of Program Instruction:



https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/head-start-act/sec-648-technical-assistance-training

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/pi/resources/acf-pi-hs-23-02-attachment-a.pdf

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/





Historical Document


FY 2023 Head Start Funding Increase  </sites/default/�les/pi/downloads/acf-pi-hs-23-02.pdf>


[PDF, 180KB]



https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/pi/downloads/acf-pi-hs-23-02.pdf

https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/





FAMILY
FAIR


• Games
• Art Projects


• Snacks/drinks
• Petting Zoo
• Magic Show


• Entertainment  
and much  more!


April 15th, 2023
10am to 2pm


ETCHEPARE HALL
COLUSA COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS


 1303 10TH ST. COLUSA, CA 95932


JOIN US FOR LOTS OF FUN!


If your agency or group would like to participate contact
Joe Moye at jmoye@ccoe.net or (530)458-0350 


CCOE- Children's Services presents the


Item # 11.1







FERIA


FAMILIAR 


• Juegos
• Proyectos de Arte


• Bebidas y Bocadillos
• Animales de Granja


• Espectáculo de Magia
•  ¡Diversión y mucho


más!
 


15 de Abril del 2023
10am a  2pm


SALON ETCHEPARE 
TERRENOS DE LA FERIA DEL


CONDADO DE COLUSA 
 1303 10TH ST. COLUSA, CA 95932


 ¡ÚNETE A LA DIVERSIÓN!
 


Si su agencia desea participar por favor contacte a:
 Joe Moye al (530)458-0350 o  jmoye@ccoe.net   


CCOE-Servicios de Niños Presenta  





		March 2023

		March 2023 Spanish

		February 2023

		PC Feb Report

		PC Feb Meal Count

		PC Feb Credit Card

		2.28.23 in kind

		Sheet1



		09 Mar 8 23 Agenda Regular

		Copy of February 2023 Enrollment

		February 2023 Attendance Chart

		SF-424

		ERSEA Recruitment Plan Revised January 2021

		Selection Criteria for HS 2023-2024

		Sheet1



		Annual Self-Assessment Process 2022-23

		Community Assessment Report 2019-2020 Final May 2020

		Revised 3-17-23 CS Five Year Program Goals  2019-2024 New Format

		Head Start Annual Report 2022-2023    3-8-23

		PI FY 2023 Head Start Funding Increase _ ECLKC

		Family Fair 2023 Flyer

		Spanish Family Fair 2023 Flyer








